
Planning Committee
Tuesday 19 March 2019

6.30 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room G01A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Martin Seaton (Chair)
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE (Vice-Chair)
Councillor James McAsh
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Adele Morris
Councillor Jason Ochere
Councillor Cleo Soanes
Councillor Kath Whittam

Councillor James Coldwell
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Jane Salmon

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as 
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you 
may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building access, 
translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Virginia Wynn-Jones on 020 7525 7055  or email: virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk  

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 11 March 2019

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


Planning Committee
Tuesday 19 March 2019

6.30 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room G01A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

PROCEDURE NOTE

1. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of 
the committee.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear days of the meeting.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any personal interests and dispensation in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

5. MINUTES 3 - 6

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the open section of the 
meeting held on 5 March 2019



Item No. Title Page No.

6. DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 7 - 11

6.1. BUILDINGS 10 AND 11, WILLIAM BOOTH MEMORIAL 
TRAINING COLLEGE, CHAMPION PARK, LONDON, SE5 8BQ

12 - 53

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE 
MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to 
Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF 
THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date:  11 March 2019



 

Planning Committee

Guidance on conduct of business for planning applications, enforcement cases 
and other planning proposals

1. The reports are taken in the order of business on the agenda.

2. The officers present the report and recommendations and answer points raised by 
members of the committee.

3. The role of members of the planning committee is to make planning decisions 
openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons in accordance 
with the statutory planning framework.

4. The following may address the committee (if they are present and wish to speak) for 
not more than 3 minutes each.

(a) One representative (spokesperson) for any objectors. If there is more than one 
objector wishing to speak, the time is then divided within the 3-minute time slot.

(b) The applicant or applicant’s agent.

(c) One representative for any supporters (who live within 100 metres of the 
development site).

(d) Ward councillor (spokesperson) from where the proposal is located.

(e) The members of the committee will then debate the application and consider the 
recommendation.

Note: Members of the committee may question those who speak only on matters 
relevant to the roles and functions of the planning committee that are outlined in the 
constitution and in accordance with the statutory planning framework.

5. If there are a number of people who are objecting to, or are in support of, an 
application or an enforcement of action, you are requested to identify a 
representative to address the committee.  If more than one person wishes to speak, 
the 3-minute time allowance must be divided amongst those who wish to speak. 
Where you are unable to decide who is to speak in advance of the meeting, you are 
advised to meet with other objectors in the foyer of the council offices prior to the 
start of the meeting to identify a representative.  If this is not possible, the chair will 
ask which objector(s) would like to speak at the point the actual item is being 
considered. 

6. Speakers should lead the committee to subjects on which they would welcome 
further questioning.

7. Those people nominated to speak on behalf of objectors, supporters or applicants, 
as well as ward members, should sit on the front row of the public seating area. This 
is for ease of communication between the committee and the speaker, in case any 
issues need to be clarified later in the proceedings; it is not an opportunity to take 
part in the debate of the committee.

1



8. Each speaker should restrict their comments to the planning aspects of the proposal 
and should avoid repeating what is already in the report. The meeting is not a 
hearing where all participants present evidence to be examined by other participants.

9. This is a council committee meeting which is open to the public and there should be 
no interruptions from the audience.

10. No smoking is allowed at committee. 

11. Members of the public are welcome to film, audio record, photograph, or tweet the 
public proceedings of the meeting; please be considerate towards other people in the 
room and take care not to disturb the proceedings.

The arrangements at the meeting may be varied at the discretion of the chair.

Contacts: General Enquiries
Planning Section, Chief Executive’s Department
Tel: 020 7525 5403

Planning Committee Clerk, Constitutional Team
Finance and Governance 
Tel: 020 7525 5485

2



1

Planning Committee - Tuesday 5 March 2019

Planning Committee
MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Planning Committee held on Tuesday 5 March 
2019 at 6.30 pm at Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London 
SE1 2QH 

PRESENT: Councillor Martin Seaton (Chair)
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor James McAsh
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Adele Morris
Councillor Cleo Soanes
Councillor Kath Whittam

OTHER MEMBERS 
PRESENT:

Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Michael Situ

OFFICER
SUPPORT:

Simon Bevan, Director of Planning
Kiran Chauhan, Old Kent Road Team
Jon Gorst, Legal Services
Pip Howson, Transport Policy
Sarah Parsons, Old Kent Road Team
Colin Wilson, Head of Regeneration Old Kent Road
Everton Roberts, Constitutional Team

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jason Ochere.  Councillor Tom 
Flynn attended as reserve.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS 

Those members listed as present were confirmed as the voting members for the meeting.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

The chair gave notice of the following additional papers which were circulated at the 
meeting:

3
Agenda Item 5



2

Planning Committee - Tuesday 5 March 2019

 Addendum report relating to item 8.1
 Members’ pack relating to item 8.1

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 

There were no disclosures of interests or dispensations.

5. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2019 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair.

6. THE RELEASE OF £8,726,686.96 FROM S106 AGREEMENTS TO DELIVER HEALTH 
FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS 

Alistair Huggett, Planning Projects Manager introduced the report.

RESOLVED:

That the release of £8,726,686.96 of section 106 funding from the legal agreements 
detailed in Appendix 1 of the report to deliver primary care and health facilities 
across Southwark be approved.

7. RELEASE OF £1,752,478.34 OF SECTION 106 MONIES FROM 9 DEVELOPMENTS IN 
THE BOROUGH TOWARDS SCHOOL PROVISION AT SIX PRIMARY SCHOOLS AND 
ONE SECONDARY SCHOOL 

Alistair Huggett, Planning Projects Manager introduced the report.

RESOLVED:

That the release of £1,752,478.34 from agreements listed in Appendix 1 of the 
report, in order to contribute to the overall capital programme requirement for the 
seven schools listed below, the total lifetime cost of which is £80,610,920 be 
approved.

School Total Available (£)
Crawford Primary School 315,666.20
Phoenix Primary School 305,490.51
Charles Dickens Primary School 249,751.67
Robert Browning Primary School 408,880.22
Bellenden Primary School 30,556.00
Cherry Garden Special School 419,206.03
The Charter School East Dulwich 22,927.71
TOTAL 1,752,478.34

4



3

Planning Committee - Tuesday 5 March 2019

8. DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

RESOLVED:

1. That the determination of planning applications, or formal observations and 
comments, the instigation of enforcement action and the receipt of the reports 
included in the agenda be considered.

2. That the decisions made on the planning applications be subject to the conditions 
and/or made for the reasons set out in the reports unless otherwise stated.

3. That where reasons for decisions or conditions are not included or not as included in 
the reports relating to an individual item, they be clearly specified.

8 .1 LAND AT CANTIUM RETAIL PARK, 520 OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA 

PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to provide a new basement 
level and buildings ranging from 3 to 48 storeys in height (max height 159.05m above 
ground level) comprising up to 1,113 residential units (Class C3), up to 5,659 sq. m of 
office floorspace (Class B1(a)), up to 2,228 sq. m of retail floorspace (Class A1), up to 
2,336 sq. m of flexible space including use within Classes A1, A3, B1(a), B1(b), D1, D2 
and / or Sui Generis (Theatre) within Block B and up to 596 sq. m of flexible space within 
Classes A1, A2 and / or A3 within Block C together with associated access, car parking, 
landscaping and infrastructure works.

The committee heard the officers’ introduction to the report.  Members of the committee 
asked questions of the officers.

A number of objectors addressed the committee. Members of the committee asked 
questions of the objectors.

The applicant’s agents addressed the committee, and answered questions by the 
committee.

There were no supporters who lived within 100 metres of the development site present at 
the meeting that wished to speak.

Councillors Evelyn Akoto and Michael Situ addressed the meeting in their capacity as 
ward councillors, and answered questions by the committee.

The committee put further questions to the officers and discussed the application.

RESOLVED:

1. a) That planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions contained in the 
committee and addendum report (but with the amendments detailed below) and 
referral to the Mayor of London, referral to the Secretary of State and the applicant 
entering into an appropriate legal agreement by no later than 5 September 2019.  

5



4

Planning Committee - Tuesday 5 March 2019

Amendments

 The time limit for implementing the permission and approved plans remain at 
the standard 3 year time limit, not 5 years indicated in the addendum report.

 The inclusion of a late stage affordable housing review, to be secured by the 
legal agreement.

b) That the environmental information be taken into account as required by 
Regulation 30 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessments) Regulations 2017.

c) That following issue of the decision it be confirmed that the Director of Planning 
shall place a statement on the Statutory Register pursuant to Regulation 30 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessments) Regulations and 
that for the purposes of Regulation 30(1)(d) the main reasons and considerations on 
which the Local Planning Authority's decision is based shall be set out as in this 
report.

d) That in the event that the requirements of (a) are not met by 5 September 2019, 
the Director of Planning be authorised to refuse planning permission, if appropriate, 
for the reasons set out at paragraph 587 of this report.

The meeting ended at 9.37pm

CHAIR:

DATED:

6



Item No. 
6.

Classification:
Open 

Date:
19 March 2019

Meeting Name:
Planning Committee

Report title: Development Management

Ward(s) or groups affected: All

From: Proper Constitutional Officer

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the determination of planning applications, or formal observations and comments, 
the instigation of enforcement action and the receipt of the reports included in the 
attached items be considered.

2. That the decisions made on the planning applications be subject to the conditions 
and/or made for the reasons set out in the attached reports unless otherwise stated.

3. That where reasons for decisions or conditions are not included or not as included in 
the reports relating to an individual item, they be clearly specified.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

4. The council’s powers to consider planning business are detailed in Part 3F which 
describes the role and functions of the planning committee and planning sub-
committees.  These were agreed by the annual meeting of the council on 23 May 2012. 
The matters reserved to the planning committee and planning sub-committees 
exercising planning functions are described in part 3F of the Southwark Council 
constitution. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

5. In respect of the attached planning committee items members are asked, where 
appropriate:

a. To determine those applications in respect of site(s) within the borough, subject 
where applicable, to the consent of the Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government and any directions made by the Mayor of London.

b. To give observations on applications in respect of which the council is not the 
planning authority in planning matters but which relate to site(s) within the 
borough, or where the site(s) is outside the borough but may affect the amenity of 
residents within the borough.

c. To receive for information any reports on the previous determination of 
applications, current activities on site, or other information relating to specific 
planning applications requested by members.

7
Agenda Item 6



6. Each of the following items are preceded by a map showing the location of the 
land/property to which the report relates.  Following the report, there is a draft decision 
notice detailing the officer's recommendation indicating approval or refusal. Where a 
refusal is recommended the draft decision notice will detail the reasons for such 
refusal.  

7. Applicants have the right to appeal to Planning Inspector against a refusal of planning 
permission and against any condition imposed as part of permission. Costs are 
incurred in presenting the council’s case at appeal which maybe substantial if the 
matter is dealt with at a public inquiry.

8. The sanctioning of enforcement action can also involve costs such as process serving, 
court costs and of legal representation.

9. Where either party is felt to have acted unreasonably in an appeal the inspector can 
make an award of costs against the offending party.

10. All legal/counsel fees and costs as well as awards of costs against the council are 
borne by the budget of the relevant department.

Community impact statement

11. Community impact considerations are contained within each item.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

12. A resolution to grant planning permission shall mean that the director of planning is 
authorised to grant planning permission. The resolution does not itself constitute the 
permission and only the formal document authorised by the committee and issued 
under the signature of the director of planning shall constitute a planning permission.  
Any additional conditions required by the committee will be recorded in the minutes and 
the final planning permission issued will reflect the requirements of the planning 
committee. 

13. A resolution to grant planning permission subject to legal agreement shall mean that 
the director of planning is authorised to issue a planning permission subject to the 
applicant and any other necessary party entering into a written agreement in a form of 
words prepared by the director of lawand democracy, and which is satisfactory to the 
director of planning. Developers meet the council's legal costs of such agreements. 
Such an agreement shall be entered into under section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 or under another appropriate enactment as shall be determined by 
the director of law and democracy. The planning permission will not be issued unless 
such an agreement is completed.

14. Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended requires the 
council to have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to 
the application, and to any other material considerations when dealing with applications 
for planning permission. Where there is any conflict with any policy contained in the 
development plan, the conflict must be resolved in favour of the policy which is 

8



contained in the last document to be adopted, approved or published, as the case may 
be (s38(5) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  

15. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides that where, 
in making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan is currently 
Southwark's Core Strategy adopted by the council in April 2011, saved policies 
contained in the Southwark Plan 2007, the where there is any conflict with any policy 
contained in the development plan, the conflict must be resolved in favour of the policy 
which is contained in the last document to be adopted, approved or published, as the 
case may be (s38(5) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  

16. On 15 January 2012 section 143 of the Localism Act 2011 came into force which 
provides that local finance considerations (such as government grants and other 
financial assistance such as New Homes Bonus) and monies received through CIL 
(including the Mayoral CIL) are a  material consideration to be taken into account in the 
determination of planning applications in England. However, the weight to be attached 
to such matters remains a matter for the decision-maker.

17. "Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy regulations (CIL) 2010, 
provides that “a planning obligation may only constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission if the obligation is:

a.   necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
b.   directly related to the development; and
c.   fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the development.

A planning obligation may only constitute a reason for granting planning permission 
if it complies with the above statutory tests."

18. The obligation must also be such as a reasonable planning authority, duly appreciating 
its statutory duties can properly impose i.e. it must not be so unreasonable that no 
reasonable authority could have imposed it. Before resolving to grant planning 
permission subject to a legal agreement members should therefore satisfy themselves 
that the subject matter of the proposed agreement will meet these tests. 

19. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into force on 27 March 2012. 
The NPPF replaces previous government guidance including all PPGs and PPSs.  For 
the purpose of decision-taking policies in the Core Strategy (and the London Plan) 
should not be considered out of date simply because they were adopted prior to 
publication of the NPPF.  For 12 months from the day of publication, decision-takers 
may continue to give full weight to relevant policies adopted in accordance with the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (PCPA) 2004 even if there is a limited degree 
of conflict with the NPPF.

20. In other cases and following and following the 12 month period, due weight should be 
given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with 
the NPPF. This is the approach to be taken when considering saved plan policies 
under the Southwark Plan 2007. The approach to be taken is that the closer the 

9



policies in the Southwark Plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that 
may be given.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Council assembly agenda 
23 May 2012

Constitutional Team
160 Tooley Street
London 
SE1 2QH

Virginia Wynn-Jones
020 7525 7055

Each planning committee 
item has a separate planning 
case file

Development Management
160 Tooley Street
London 
SE1 2QH

The named case officer 
as listed or the Planning 
Department
020 7525 5403

APPENDICES

No. Title
None

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Chidi Agada, Head of Constitutional Services
Report Author Virginia Wynn-Jones, Principal Constitutional Officer

Jonathan Gorst, Head of Regeneration and Development 
Version Final

Dated 11 March 2019
Key Decision? No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER

Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Director of Planning No No
Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 11 March 2019

10



ITEMS ON AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
on Tuesday 19 March 2019

BUILDINGS 10  AND 11, WILLIAM BOOTH MEMORIAL TRAINING COLLEGE, 
CHAMPION PARK, LONDON, SE5 8BQ

Site
Full Planning ApplicationAppl. Type

Demolition of two existing buildings (Use Class C2) and erection of a part four, five and six storey multi-purpose building(maximum 
height of 23m), including basement, for offices (Use Class B1a) (6,747.3sqm GEA) and cafe (Use Class A3) (230.9sqm GEA), 
together with landscaping, boundary treatment, access and other associated works.

Proposal

18-AP-3144Reg. No.

TP/2166-ATP No.

Champion HillWard

Christopher KirbyOfficer

GRANT SUBJECT TO LEGAL AGREEMENTRecommendation Item 6/1

CtteAgenda-v2.rpt

11



© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey (0)100019252. Land Registry Index data is subject to Crown copyright
and is reproduced with the permission of Land Registry.

Buildings 10  And 11, William Booth Memorial Training College

12
Agenda Item 6.1



Item No. 
6.1

Classification:  
Open

Date:
19 March 2019

Meeting Name: 
Planning Committee

Report title: Development Management planning application:  
Application 18/AP/3144 for: Full Planning Application

Address: 
Buildings 10 And 11, William Booth Memorial Training College, Champion 
Park, London, SE5 8BQ

Proposal: 
Demolition of two existing buildings (Use Class C2) and erection of a part 
four, five and six storey multi-purpose building(maximum height of 23m), 
including basement, for offices (Use Class B1a) (6,747.3sqm GEA) and 
cafe (Use Class A3) (230.9sqm GEA), together with landscaping, boundary 
treatment, access and other associated works.

Ward(s) or 
groups 
affected: 

Champion Hill

From: Director of Planning 

Application Start Date 09/10/2018 Application Expiry Date  08/01/2019
Earliest Decision Date 14/12/2018

RECOMMENDATION

1. a) That planning permission be granted, subject to conditions and the applicant 
entering into a satisfactory legal agreement, and; 

b) That in the event that the legal agreement is not entered into by 19 June 2019 
the Director of Planning be authorised to refuse planning permission if 
appropriate for the reasons set out in paragraph 120 of this report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Site location and description

2. The application site forms part of the Salvation Army's main training facility, known as 
William Booth College, and is located on Champion Park. The section of the site on 
which the development has been proposed is on the western side of the college, close 
to the junction with Denmark Hill. The site has an area of .036ha and contains two four 
storey buildings, known as Buildings 10 and 11, which contain living accommodation 
used in conjunction with the main training centre, and therefore designated as Class 
C2 use. Buildings 10 and 11 are the newest buildings on the Salvation Army site, 
having been built in 1986. Both buildings were recently used to house refugees 
awaiting permanent settlement, under a temporary permission granted in 2017, but 
this use has now ceased.

3. Whilst the main site frontage is on Champion Park, the rest of the site is bound by a 
landscaped area fronting Denmark Hill to the west; Allport House, Hannen House and 
a small community play area to the south; and William Booth College Buildings 8 and 
9 to the east. The site slopes steeply upwards as it extends southwards towards 
Allport House, and this rear part of the site contains a number of established trees.

13



4. The surrounding area comprises a mix of building heights and uses as well as a mix of 
modern and heritage buildings. Diagonally opposite the site on Denmark Hill is the 
part nine part ten storey Golden Jubilee wing of Kings College hospital, which now 
supports an air ambulance helicopter landing pad on its roof. Maudsley Hospital to the 
north contains buildings ranging from two to seven storeys.  

5. The buildings immediately to the south of the site are predominantly residential and 
vary between five to six storeys in height. Buildings 8 and 9 on William Booth College, 
which are located directly east, are four storeys in height with the higher tower being 
further to the east.  

6. Champion Park and Denmark Hill are both Classified A roads which have several bus 
routes along both of them. This, together with the site being located directly opposite 
the Denmark Hill station, gives the site a high Public Transport Accessibility Level 
(PTAL) of 5 indicating a 'very good' level of accessibility.

7. The majority of the site is not located within a conservation area and there are no 
listed buildings or structures within the application site. However, there is a very small 
section, in the north eastern corner of the application site, which does fall within the 
Camberwell Grove Conservation Area which extends along the eastern side of the 
site. In addition to this there are a number of listed buildings within the broader area, 
they are as follows: 

 To the east, the William Booth Memorial Training College (main building) as well 
as the statues of Mrs Booth and General Booth in the forecourt of the training 
college - both are Grade II listed.

 To the North West, 111 Denmark Hill - Grade II listed.
 To the north, Denmark Hill Station - Grade II listed.
 To the south east, 27 and 28 Champion Grove - Grade II listed.

Details of proposal

14



Background to the proposal

8. The Salvation Army, who is the applicant for this application, is a Protestant Christian 
church and a international charitable organisation, which provides activities to address 
poverty and disaster relief and humanitarian aid to developing countries. The 
organisation reports a worldwide membership which is spread across 131 countries.

9. The William Booth College was constructed and formally opened on 8 July 1929. The 
Salvation Army chose the site in 1921 because they were looking for a prominent 
location on which to build a ‘University of Humanity’ as a memorial to their founder 
General William Booth. The external facades of the college were designed by Sir Giles 
Scott, a prominent British architect who was noted for his blending of gothic tradition 
with modernism to design popular landmark buildings across Britain.

10. The college provides distance and on-site learning programs for their cadets (officers-
in-training), officers, lay employees and volunteers throughout the UK, Ireland and 
abroad. In addition to the training and administrative facilities provided on site, the 
college also provides temporary accommodation where the majority of the cadets stay 
during the duration of the course. 

11. The Salvation Army's office headquarters are currently located at 101 Newington 
Causeway, in Elephant and Castle. They have expressed their views that their offices 
in Newington Causeway are no longer fit for purposed and they would essentially like 
to 'return home' to the William Booth College site.

Details of Proposal.

12. Planning consent is sought to redevelop the western section of the William Booth 
College which consists of two buildings (Buildings and 10 and 11). The existing 
buildings would be demolished to create a new part four, five and six storey 
headquarters office for The Salvation Army's UK and Republic of Ireland operations.

13. The proposed development would comprise of 6,747.3sqm of office floor space (Use 
Class B1 (a)). In addition to this there would be a small cafe (Use Class A3) on the 
lower ground floor (which is effectively street level to Champion Park). The new 
building as it fronts onto Champion Park, would be four commercial storeys high with a 
slightly set back fifth storey before stepping up to a sixth storey at the rear, as the 
gradient starts to rise to the south.  

15



14. In terms of materials the building would be constructed of similar red/brown brick to 
that used on the existing buildings on the William Booth Campus. The presence of the 
red brick on all four elevations would be interspersed with stone cladding and full 
height windows. The Champion Park and rear elevations also includes stone fins The 
sixth floor would be constructed in stone cladding with large window openings.  

15. Apart form the one disabled car parking space that would be reserved for blue badge 
holders, the proposed development would not provide any additional on site car 
parking spaces. Whilst the proposal would result in a loss of 15 of the existing 16 car 
parking spaces. The development would provide 171 cycling parking spaces.

16. The application site has 25 categorised trees. Out of the 25 trees on site, nine 
category B and three category C trees have been identified for removal in order to 

16



facilitate this development. The majority of the trees that would be removed are 
located to the rear of the site. The applicant has proposed that the loss can be 
mitigated through the planting of semi-mature stock during the landscaping phase. In 
addition to the proposed works to the existing trees on site the there would also be 
extensive hard and soft landscaping done throughout, with the majority of it being 
done on the Champion Park frontage.

Planning history

17. 17/AP/1519 Application type: Certificate of Lawfulness - proposed (CLP)
Use or Development (CLOPUD) to confirm the lawful use of four dwellings within 
building no. 10 to accommodate refugee families for a temporary period of up to five 
years (within the existing C2 use class)
Decision date 25/05/2017 Decision: Granted (GRA)   

17/AP/3919 Application type: Tree Preservation Order - works related (TPO)
T1 - 1 x Horse Chestnut with visible signs of Honey Fungus and basal decay to 
carefully dismantle to as close to ground level as possible. Clear all arisings leaving 
site clean and tidy. Outside Building 10.
T2- 1 x Lime tree to cut back from building to give a clearance of approximately 3 
meters. Outside Building 11.
T3 -1 x Lime tree overhanging bus stop on main road to crown lift over bus stop to 
approximately 4 meters.T4 - 2nd Lime tree to crown lift over bus stop to 
approximately 4 meters and to cut back from building to give a clearance of 
approximately 2-3 meters.
Decision date 13/11/2017 Decision: TPO consent granted (TPOG)   

18/EQ/0069 Application type: Pre-Application Enquiry (ENQ)
The demolition of two existing buildings and the development of a multi-purpose 
building of approximately 5,000sqm, comprising primarily office space for The 
Salvation Army HQ. The HQ building will also contain additional uses such as a café 
open to the community, a prayer room, and band practice space.

Decision date 27/04/2018 Decision: Pre-application enquiry closed (EQC)   

Planning history of adjoining sites 

18. 13/OB/0028 Application type: Formal Observation 
Erection of a helipad on top of existing 10 storey Ruskin Wing building in South-East 
corner of hospital site, including the supporting structure, associated office space, 
access ramp, new lift core and first floor bridge link. Helipad used for emergency 
medical services only.  
Decision date 17.01.2014
07/AP1620 Application type: 
Demolition of non-original late 19th century first floor link, demolition of some internal 
walls and 3/4 height partitions and formation of new internal staircase, lavatories and 
kitchenette
Decision date: 09.10.2007

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

Summary of main issues

19. The main issues to be considered in respect of this application are:

17



 Equality implications
 Environmental impact assessment
 Design, including building heights 
 Impact on heritage assets
 Trees and landscaping 
 Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and 

surrounding areas
 Noise and vibration
 Transport
 Air quality 
 Flood risk
 Sustainable development implications 
 Archaeology
 Planning obligations (S.106 undertaking or agreement)
 Mayoral and Borough community infrastructure levy (CIL)
 Statement of community involvement
 Other matters.

Planning policy

National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) 2019

20. The revised National Planning Policy Framework (‘NPPF’) was published in February 
2019 which sets out the national planning policy and how this needs to be applied. 
The NPPF focuses on sustainable development with three key objectives: economic, 
social and environmental. Paragraph 215 states that the policies in the Framework are 
material considerations which should be taken into account in dealing with 
applications.

Chapter 2 Achieving sustainable development
Chapter 6 Building a strong, competitive economy
Chapter 7 Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Chapter 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities
Chapter 9 Promoting sustainable transport
Chapter 11 Making effective use of land
Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places
Chapter 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Chapter 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

National Planning Practice Guidance

The London Plan 2016

21. The London Plan is the regional planning framework and was adopted in 2016. The 
relevant policies of the London Plan 2016 are: 

Policy 3.1 - Ensuring Equal Life Chances For All
Policy 4.1 – Developing London’s Economy
Policy 4.2 - Offices
Policy 4.12 - Improving Opportunities for All
Policy 5.1 - Climate Change Mitigation
Policy 5.2 - Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
Policy 5.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction
Policy 5.5 - Decentralised Energy Networks
Policy 5.6 - Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals

18



Policy 5.7 - Renewable energy
Policy 5.8 - Innovative energy technologies
Policy 5.9 - Overheating and Cooling
Policy 5.10 - Urban Greening
Policy 5.11 - Green roofs and development site environs
Policy 5.12 - Flood risk management
Policy 5.13 - Sustainable drainage
Policy 5.14 - Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure
Policy 5.15 - Water Use and Supplies
Policy 5.21 - Contaminated land
Policy 6.9 - Cycling
Policy 6.10 - Walking
Policy 6.13 - Parking
Policy 7.1 - Building London’s Neighbourhoods and Communities
Policy 7.2 - An inclusive environment
Policy 7.3 - Designing out crime
Policy 7.4 - Local character
Policy 7.5 - Public Realm
Policy 7.6 - Architecture
Policy 7.8 - Heritage assets and archaeology
Policy 7.14 - Improving Air Quality
Policy 7.15 – Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes
Policy 7.19 - Biodiversity and Access to Nature
Policy 7.21 - Trees and woodlands
Policy 8.2 - Planning obligations
Policy 8.3 - Community infrastructure levy

Core Strategy 2011

22. The Core Strategy was adopted in 2011 providing the spatial planning strategy for the 
borough. The strategic policies in the Core Strategy are relevant alongside the saved 
Southwark Plan (2007) policies. The relevant policies of the Core Strategy 2011 are:

Strategic Policy 1 – Sustainable development
Strategic Policy 2 – Sustainable transport
Strategic Policy 10 – Jobs and businesses
Strategic Policy 11 – Open spaces and wildlife
Strategic Policy 12 – Design and conservation
Strategic Policy 13 – High environmental standards

Southwark Plan 2007 (July) - saved policies

23. In 2013, the council resolved to ‘save’ all of the policies in the Southwark Plan 2007 
unless they had been updated by the Core Strategy with the exception of Policy 1.8 
(location of retail outside town centres). Paragraph 213 of the NPPF states that 
existing policies should not be considered out of date simply because they were 
adopted or made prior to publication of the Framework. Due weight should be given to 
them, according to their degree of consistency with the Framework. The relevant 
policies of the Southwark Plan 2007 are:

1.1 - Access to employment opportunities
2.5 - Planning obligations
3.1 - Environmental Effects
3.2 - Protection of amenity
3.3 - Sustainability assessment
3.4 - Energy efficiency

19



3.6 - Air quality
3.7 - Waste reduction
3.9 - Water
3.11 - Efficient use of land
3.12 - Quality in design
3.13 - Urban design
3.14 - Designing out crime
3.15 - Conservation of the historic environment
3.16 - Conservation areas
3.18 - Setting of listed buildings, conservation areas and world heritage sites
3.19 - Archaeology
3.28 - Biodiversity
5.2 - Transport impacts
5.3 - Walking and cycling
5.6 - Car parking
5.7 - Parking standards for disabled people and the mobility impaired

Section 106 Planning Obligations/CIL SPD (2015)
Sustainable Transport SPD (2010)
Sustainable design and construction SPD (2009)
Sustainability assessments SPD (2009)
Statement of Community Involvement (2008)
Design and access statements SPD (2007)

Draft New Southwark Plan (NSP)

24. For the last five years the council has been preparing the New Southwark Plan (NSP) 
which will replace the saved policies of the 2007 Southwark Plan and the 2011 Core 
Strategy. The council concluded consultation on the Proposed Submission version 
(Regulation 19) on 27 February 2018. The New Southwark Plan Proposed Submission 
Version: Amended Policies January 2019 is being consulted on until 17 May 2019. It is 
anticipated that the plan will be adopted in late 2019 following an Examination in 
Public (EIP). As the NSP is not yet adopted policy, it can only be attributed limited 
weight. Nevertheless paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that decision makers may give 
weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to the stage of preparation of 
the emerging plan, the extent to which there are unresolved objections to the policy 
and the degree of consistency with the Framework.

Draft New London Plan

25. The draft New London Plan was published on 30 November 2017 and the first and 
only stage of consultation closed on 2 March 2018. Minor suggested changes to the 
plan were published on 13 August 2018 and an Examination in Public (EIP) began on 
15 January 2019.  The EIP will continue until May 2019 and until the London Plan 
reaches formal adoption it can only be attributed limited weight.

Principle of Development 

26. At the heart of the NPPF is the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
Amongst the key themes in achieving sustainable development are ensuring that they 
contribute to the building of a strong, competitive economy, promoting sustainable 
transport, delivering good design and make effective use of land.

27. The Salvation Army, who are the freeholder and occupier of the application site and 
the wider William Booth College site, wish to relocate their existing Territorial 
Headquarters (THQ) from Newington Causeway to their Denmark Hill site. The 
William Booth College was originally purpose-built to include both the training campus 

20



and the THQ functions but the headquarter office functions then relocated to 
Newington Causeway. However, the Salvation Army has expressed their concerns 
that the existing THQ building is no longer fit for purpose and as a result they wish to 
redevelop a section of the application site to accommodate the returning of their 
headquarters

Land use assessment 

28. The proposed development would result in the loss of the Class C2 use (residential 
institution including training centre) on the application site. The proposed development 
would introduce Class B1 (a) (offices) with Class A3 use (restaurants and café) on at 
ground floor. 

Loss of Class C2 – (residential institution, including training centre)

29. Buildings 10 and 11 have provided temporary residential accommodation for the 
members of the Salvation Army. This use has been ancillary to the main function of 
the wider site as it has predominantly been used to accommodate cadets during their 
training at the college. As the need for providing accommodation to members of the 
Salvation Army began to reduce the army applied for a certificate of lawfulness in 
2017 (17/AP/1519), to obtain temporary permission to use 4 of the units in building 10 
to accommodate refugee families. The certificate was awarded, with the decision that 
the use to accommodate the families for a period of five years would be lawful.

30. The 2017 temporary permission for the residential use would lapse in 2022, however, 
the Salvation Army has confirmed with the council that the families no longer need to 
be accommodated at the college. Therefore, the lawful class C2 use remains the 
lawful use for the site. The C2 use is not protected under development plan policies 
and therefore the loss of C2 is considered acceptable.

Class B1(a) - Office 

31. The NPPF expects significant weight to be given to supporting economic growth and 
for local business needs to be taken into account. Policies should be applied flexibly 
enough to accommodate needs not anticipated in the plan, and for specific locational 
requirements to be recognised. The Core Strategy sets out a target for growth in 
business floorspace, and although it anticipates that most of this will be focused in the 
Central Area and town centres, it does not preclude office growth in other appropriate 
locations. The site is not located within a town centre and the NPPF identifies office 
use as town centre use. Paragraph 86 of the NPPF 2019 requires that Local planning 
authorities should apply a sequential test to planning applications for main town centre 
uses which are neither in an existing centre nor in accordance with an up-to-date plan. 
It is preferable for main town centre uses to be located in town centres, before being 
considered in edge of centre locations. 

32. The application site is not within Camberwell town centre, and is roughly 650 metre 
from the town centre boundary. It is, however, well located for public transport, which 
is one of the NPPF requirements for out of centre development, and in determining 
this application it is reasonable to give weight to the specific circumstances of the 
Salvation Army application. The William Booth centre has been established for over 
90 years, and has in the past included their administrative offices. Bringing the 
Headquarters offices to Champion Park would allow the Salvation Army to consolidate 
their operations here, and create operational efficiencies which benefit the wider 
organisation. It would also release their Elephant and Castle site for development.

33. The area contains a mix of uses alongside the training college, most notably the two 
large teaching hospitals at Kings College and Maudesley. The office use would 

21



support this mixed use character as well as reinforcing the economy of the nearby 
Camberwell town centre. 

34. The redevelopment of the site would allow for a more efficient use of the  land which 
is no longer required to house trainees and essentially enable greater synergy 
between the headquarter office functions and the William Booth College. As such, it 
can be supported in land use terms.

Class A3 – (restaurants and cafe)

35. The proposal would also provide a small café (Class A3 use) on the Champion Park 
frontage at ground floor level. This small unit would not draw any significant level of 
trade from the Camberwell town centre, would activate the street frontage, and would 
provide an additional local service not just for those working on the site but also for the 
wider public including those at the hospitals.

Conclusion on land use

36. Chapter 6 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), emphasises that 
planning decisions should ‘help create the conditions in which businesses can invest, 
expand and adapt’ (para. 80). The Salvation Army have identified existing facilities 
under their ownership that are no longer being used effectively. This has presented an 
opportunity for them to adapt and relocate, to better utilising their existing facilities in a 
location well-served by public transport. The proposed development is therefore 
supported in land use terms.  

Community impact statement / Equalities Assessment

37. The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) contained in Section 149 (1) of the Equality 
Act 2010 imposes a duty on public authorities to have, in the exercise of their 
functions, due regard to three “needs” which are central to the aims of the Act:

a) The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by the Act

b) The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons sharing a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.  This involves having 
due regard to the need to:
 Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic
 Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it
 Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate 

in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionately low 

c) The need to foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it.  This involves having due regard, in 
particular, to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.

38. The protected characteristics are: race, age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief, sex, marriage and civil 
partnership.

39. The Council must not act in a way which is incompatible with rights contained within 
the European Convention of Human Rights

22



40. The Council has given due regard to the above needs and rights where relevant or 
engaged throughout the course of determining this application.

41. The Salvation Army provide a range of charitable services to vulnerable groups 
including the homeless, those in poverty, elderly people and children. Many of these 
activities directly benefit people with protected characteristics. 

42. In 2017 the Salvation Army were given temporary permission, for a period of up to 5 
years, the use buildings 10 and 11 as short term housing for asylum seekers awaiting 
permanent homes. The flats were no longer needed for the Salvation Army member 
families, The Salvation Army have confirmed that all refugee/asylum seekers that 
were housed in buildings 10 and 11, in the lead up to submission of this application, 
have been re-housed within the Borough. The Salvation Army has assured the council 
that all appropriate measures had been put in place in the lead up to and post the 
relocation process. 

43. Therefore, officers are satisfied that the proposed development would not negatively 
impact on those with protected characteristics and that the council has followed its 
legal duties under s.149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

Design issues 

44. The NPPF emphasises the importance of good design and states in Paragraph 56 that 
“Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good 
planning, and should contribute positively to making better places for people.” 

45. Chapter 7 of the London Plan deals with design related matters. In particular, Policy 
7.1 set out the design principles required of new development and Policy 7.6 requires 
that architects should make a positive contribution to the public realm, streetscape and 
cityscape. Policy 7.8 asserts that development affecting heritage assets and their 
settings should conserve their significance by being sympathetic in their form, scale, 
materials and architectural detail. 

46. The relevant Southwark design and conservation policies include Strategic Policy 12 
of the Core Strategy and Saved Policies 3.12 ‘Quality in design’, 3.13 ‘Urban design’, 
3.16 ‘conservation area’, and 3.18 ‘Settings of listed buildings, conservation areas and 
world heritage sites’. These policies require the highest possible standards for design 
for buildings and public spaces. The principle of good urban design must be taken into 
account in all developments, including height, scale and massing of buildings, 
consideration of the local context, including historic events, its character, and 
townscape strategic and local views. 

47. The proposal is to replace the two 4/5 storey existing buildings on the site with one 
larger office building arranged parallel to Champion Park. The front elevation of the 
new building would be part four and part five storeys high. It would then have a 
distinctive setback before being stepped up to the sixth storey towards the rear as the 
hillside rises to the south. In comparison to the existing buildings on site, the proposed 
development would be larger both in terms of height and footprint, and be set slightly 
further forward on Champion Park, and thus have a more prominent visual presence. 
The application has proposed to remove the current boundary wall and railings and 
create new landscaping at the front of the site the details of which would be confirmed 
via a condition following the outcome of a tree survey 

48. The applicant has provided a series of images which set the new building in the 
context of the wider College frontage. The new building is broadly the same order of 
scale as the college buildings further east along Champion Park. The sixth storey 
would largely be hidden from the views along Champion Park by the main frontage of 

23



the building and its setback (but clearly evident from the rear). In addition the mature 
trees along Champion Park would form a partial screen to the site. It would be set 
back from the street by the same distance as the existing buildings to the east and be 
roughly the same length as its equivalent symmetrical building to the east of the tower, 
(buildings 04 and 03 on the campus). The culmination of these factors ensure that the 
proposed development responds to and integrates with the establish character and 
heritage of the area and in particular the William Booth Collage campus.    

49. The western elevation would also have a prominent visual presence when travelling 
up Denmark Hill, and particularly at the intersection of Denmark Hill and Champion 
Park. Due to the small parcel of open land to the west of the site, the presence at the 
intersection would not be overly dominant as it would be 37m away from it. 

50. To the rear of the site are two 6 storey blocks of flats (Allport House and Hannen 
House) which sit within small open spaces. The office block would be higher than the 
buildings to the rear of the site. However, due to the differences in ground level 
between the application site and the neighbouring properties (to the south) the 
proposed development would only appear one storey higher. The office would be built 
closer to the southern boundary line than the existing accommodation blocks, but the 
retained boundary open space and intervening access road means that the site would 
not appear cramped. Furthermore, the gradient would ensure that the office would not 
feel imposing over the open spaces that are located further south of the site.

Architectural design, fabric, function and composition

51. Saved policy 3.12 asserts that developments “should achieve a high quality of both 
architectural and urban design, enhancing the quality of the built environment in order 
to create attractive, high amenity environments people will choose to live in, work in 
and visit.” When the council reviews the quality of design we consider the 
appropriateness of the fabric, geometry and function as well as the overall concept for 
the design relative to the site. For a site such as this, these points are all imperative. 
The site forms part of a broader complex of powerful ‘beaux art gothic’ styled 
architecture which has asserted itself within the character of the area. In order for the 
proposed development to successfully integrate within the existing complex it will 
require a careful architectural response.

52. The main front façade of the four storey element is to be articulated as a series of 
brick buttresses with full height windows with vertical stone fins between. The infill 
between the windows would get progressively closer together from floor to floor. This 

24



gives the main body an ordered and well proportioned appearance. The top floor 
would be setback from all four elevations and the glazing to the atrium is detailed in a 
more minimalist fashion. In this way the massing of the top floor is suppressed and 
lightened.

53. The end bay on the western side is raised a further storey above the main lower 
façade to form an elegantly detailed miniature tower as a full stop to composition and 
to articulate the prominent Champion Park and Denmark Hill corner. This also 
provides an opportunity for a large symbolic cross motif within the brickwork on the 
façade in this position. 

54. The other facades include solid brick infill between the buttresses. At various places, 
notably the entrance to the building, the brick buttresses are omitted in order to allow 
the lighter weight filigree of fins and windows to break through. 

55. The design is derived from the hierarchical composition of the Gothic forms of the 
original William Booth buildings but will be lighter and more subtle, and clearly 
identifiable as a modern addition to the site. The high quality finishes would ensure 
that the building would have an ordered character and composition that would respond 
well to the site’s established surroundings.  

56. The landscaping is also well considered. By removing the boundary walls around the 
site it would create a more public, civic forecourt to the building. This is a welcome 
addition and a public benefit of the scheme.

Heritage assets

57. As mentioned in the Site Location and Description section of this report, the nearest 
heritage assets include the following:

25



 To the east, the William Booth Memorial Training Collage (main building) as well 
as the statues of Mrs Booth and General Booth in the forecourt of the training 
collage - both are Grade II listed.

 To the North West, 111 Denmark Hill - Grade II listed.
 To the north, Denmark Hill Station - Grade II listed.
 To the south east, 27 and 28 Champion Grove - Grade II listed
 Camberwell Grove conservation area.

58. The central block of the William Booth Training Collage was completed in 1932. Its 
significance lies in its character as an example of Beaux Arts style architecture 
drawing upon the principles of French neoclassicism, Gothic and Renaissance 
elements. The listing description highlights the importance of the comparative scale 
between the four storey blocks and the massive central tower. The matching bricks 
and series of buttresses have a key role in the success in unifying the two opposing 
scales. 

59. The listed Denmark Hill railway station, which includes the platforms and canopies, 
was completed in the 1864-1866. Its significant lies in its character as an example of 
high Victorian Gothic style and clinical use of a variety of materials. 

60. The Camberwell Grove conservation area is based on two long residential streets of 
Camberwell Grove and Grove Lane. The conservation area also includes areas of 
historic interest in Champion Park, Denmark Hill, and Grove Park. The application site 
is located on the western side of the conservation which is characterised by strong 
institutional building complexes. There are two significant views to and from major 
landmarks in the area. The first is St. Giles Church Spire, which is located to the west 
of the conservation area, and the second is the tower of the Grade II listed building at 
the William Booth College.   

61. Based on the information that has been submitted with this application, it shows that 
the proposed development would be visible from a variety of locations from which the 
two listed building can be seen. It would be clearly visible from both the western side 
of Champion Park, as well as from locations further north of the railway line, Windsor 
Walk and along Denmark Hill. However, from most of these view points the proposed 
development would not obstruct views of the listed buildings in their entirety or to an 
extent far greater than caused by the existing buildings on site.

62. As mentioned previously in this section, the proposed development has been 
designed in a way that aims to incorporate key elements of the broader William Booth 
College complex. The design has incorporated materials that are in keeping with those 
that are established and it would be built to a scale that would replicate the 
surrounding buildings. As such, it would not obstruct or detract views away from the 
listed building and/or the setting of the conservation area.

26



63. In addition to this if it were considered that there is harm due to the way that the 
proposal interacts visually with the views of the listed buildings, that harm is less than 
substantial and is certainly outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal.        

Conservation Area Advisory Group comments (CAAG)

64. The scheme was presented to CAAG on 19 November 2018. The panel noted the 
following:

‘that the proposal involves demolition of two sensitively designed collegiate style 
residential 1980s buildings and that they are architecturally sympathetic to the Scott 
building in materials and scale and are sited to the side of the site’s central building 
and tower. The two buildings to be demolished acknowledge the massing of those that 
they originally replaced which in turn relates to those on the uphill side of the frontage. 
It was stated that it is unlikely that the entire symmetrical main elevation of the campus 
is visible from any viewpoint in the area. The panel appreciated this but felt that the 
replacement of two smaller buildings of collegiate character with a much bigger, 
bulkier building of greater height and blatant commercial character did nothing to 
preserve or enhance the CA. Quite to the contrary, the panel thought the proposal not 
contextual, alien to the character of the rest of the campus and quite “without art”.

The CAAG Panel had some sympathy with the applicant’s motives but felt that a much 
more sensitive solution was required that had less obvious bulk and that paid a great 
deal more attention to the character of the site, the neighbouring buildings and the CA. 
They wondered whether a starting point might be to lo look at retaining, adapting and 
adding to the two existing buildings in an appropriate and sympathetic style in keeping 
with the collegiate character of the whole campus.

The choice of brick for the facing was clearly appropriate but the pinched appearance 
of the fenestration and the plain unimaginative commercial massing and elevational 
treatment of the building was all thought regrettable.’

65. In response to this the council believes that, the existing buildings are outside the 
conservation area even though they are part of the wider Salvation Army complex on 
Champion Park. Whilst the existing 1980s buildings fit discretely into the conservation 
area they are of no value in themselves and would not meet the test to be worthy of 
preserving.

27



66. The replacement headquarters building is larger and bulkier than the existing 1980s 
buildings. However, its street elevations are no higher than mid-rise buildings of the 
rest of the William Booth Memorial Training College complex and it is designed to be 
subservient to the Grade II Listed Main Block nearby on Champion Park. Its massing 
is carefully arranged such that it will not dominate the area or cause undue harm to 
the collegiate character of the complex. In addition, a screen of mature street trees 
and the very long street elevation of the overall complex (such that this elevation can 
not be seen in its entirety from any one viewpoint) also help to ease the new building 
into its surroundings.

67. The new building will be built in brick and stone. It will have finely crafted architectural 
details and a façade design that are derived from the design of the original buildings 
on the site and which are a modern day interpretation of the collegiate character of the 
campus.

68. In conclusion, the proposal could be judged to cause some limited harm to the setting 
of the conservation area arising from its visibility in this established historic context. 
However, any harm arising due to the limited visibility is outweighed by the public 
benefits of the development including the public realm improvements, its subservient 
relationship to the Main Building and the employment opportunities arising in this area.

Environmental impact assessment 

69. The European SEA Directive is transposed into UK law by the Town and Country 
Planning (Environmental Impact assessment) (Amendment) Regulations 2017. The 
regulations set out the circumstances under which development needs to be under 
pinned by an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA). Schedule 1 of the regulations 
set out a range of development, predominantly involving industrial operations, for 
which an EIA is mandatory. Schedule 2 lists a range of developments for which an EIA 
might be required on the basis that t could give rise to significant environmental 
impacts. Schedule 3 sets out that the significance of any impact should include 
consideration of the characteristics of the development, the environmental sensitivity 
of the location and the nature of the development. 

70. The development is not considered to constitute EIA development, based the size of 
their site and a review of the scheme against both the EIA Regulations and the 
European Commission guidance.

Impact of adjoining and nearby uses on occupiers and users of proposed 
development.

71. It is not anticipated that there would be any conflict of use that would have any 
adverse impact on occupiers of the proposed office. 

Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and 
surrounding area.

Overlooking, outlook and privacy.

72. The nearest residential properties to the proposed development are located at Allport 
House and the flats on the upper floors of No. 121 Denmark Hill. The rear elevation of 
the flats at No. 121 Denmark Hill contains a series of high level slit windows. These 
windows would not be directly opposite the proposed development and there would be 
a distance of 21m separating the two buildings. In addition to this, the main habitable 
space faces out towards Denmark Hill. Therefore, officers are satisfied that the 
proposed development would not have a harmful impact on the privacy of the 

28



occupiers at the flats at No.121.

73. The southern elevation of the proposed development would be directly opposite one of 
the flanking elevations at Allport House. This flanking elevation has one small single 
window on each of the floors. The development has proposed a series of windows 
which would be located slightly further to the west from the windows on Allport House, 
which would restrict direct views into the windows. Therefore there would not be a 
harmful loss of privacy. The two buildings would be separated by 15m. This would be 
less than the 21 metres requirements set out in the SPD. However, these windows do 
not serve as the main source of outlook for these flats, as the main outlook is to the 
east and west. Therefore, the main point of outlook would be preserved.

74. Building 9 on the William Booth College is located 18 metres away to the east of the 
most eastern elevation of the proposed development. Building 10, one of the two to be 
demolished, is located slightly closer to Building 9 in comparison to what has been 
proposed. Building 10 has a number of east facing windows providing views not 
dissimilar to what would be attained from the within proposed development. As such, 
the greater distance between the proposed east elevation and Building 9 and the fact 
that there are established views out towards Building 9 at present, would ensure that 
the impact on privacy of privacy would be no greater than what already exists, 
notwithstanding the different pattern of use of the proposed offices. Acceptable levels 
of outlook would be retained as the separation distances are sufficient to ensure there 
would be no significant sense of enclosure.       

75. Building 8 of the William Booth Collage, located to the south east would be 26 metres 
away from the nearest point of the proposed development. This would exceed the 21 
metres set out in the SPD but in addition to this, the opposing elevations would be set 
at an angle. The distance between the two buildings and the fact that the opposing 
elevations are not parallel to each other would ensure that there is no detrimental loss 
of privacy. Acceptable levels of outlook would be retained as the separation distances 
are sufficient to ensure there would be no significant sense of enclosure.        

Daylight

76. A daylight and sunlight report has been submitted which assesses the scheme based 
on the Building Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines on the daylight and sunlight. 

77. The BRE sets out a rationale for testing the daylight impacts of new developments 
through various tests. The first is the Vertical Sky Component test (VSC), which is the 
most readily adopted. This test considers the potential for daylight by calculating the 
angle of vertical sky at the centre of each of the windows serving the residential 
buildings which look towards the site. The target figure for VSC recommended by the 
BRE is 27% which is considered to be a good level of daylight and the level 
recommended for habitable rooms with windows on principal elevations. The BRE 
have determined that the daylight can be reduced by about 20% of the original value 
before the loss is noticeable. 

78. The second method that can be used is the No Sky Line (NSL) or Daylight Distribution 
(DD) method which assesses the proportion of the room where the sky is visible, and 
plots the change in the No Sky Line between the existing and proposed situation. It 
advises that if there is a reduction of more than 20% in the area of sky visibility, 
daylight may be affected. The following properties have been assessed as a part of 
the daylight and sunlight assessment. 

29



Neighbouring 
Properties

No. of windows 
assessed - Daylight

No. of windows 
assessed - Sunlight

Allport House 36 windows/ 18 rooms 6 windows
Hannen House 36 windows/ 18 rooms 6 windows
Building 8 (WBC) 38 windows/ 12 rooms 38 windows
Building 9 (WBC) 38 windows/ 12 rooms 38 windows
121 Denmark Hill 13 windows/ 4 rooms N/A -North-facing
123-127 Denmark Hill 4 windows/ rooms N/A -North-facing
Total 165 windows/ 64 rooms 88 windows

Allport House

79. 36 windows and 18 rooms have been assessed at this property for VSC and DD 
respectively. Ten windows would have a VSC reduction that would exceed the BRE 
guidance. These reductions would vary between 21% - 38%.The worst affected 
windows are secondary windows serving rooms that are dual aspect. The two worst 
affected windows both serve rooms that are dual aspect, with the other windows being 
unaffected by the proposed development. In addition to this results of the daylight 
distribution test show that these rooms would be compliant with the BRE guidelines, 
showing that the rooms overall would continue to the well-lit. All rooms assessed for 
DD would remain within the BRE guidelines.  

Hannen House

80. All windows and rooms assessed for VSC and DD would remain within the BRE 
guidelines.

Building 8, William Booth Training Collage 

81. All windows and rooms assessed for VSC and DD would remain within the BRE 
guidelines.

Building 9, William Booth Training College

82. 38 windows and 12 rooms have been accessed at this property for VSC and DD 
respectively. Six windows would have a VSC reduction that would exceed the BRE 
guidance. These reductions would vary between 22% - 24%. These percentages are 
considered to be marginal losses. One room would see a DD reduction of 21% which 
is 1% higher than the BRE guideline figure of 20%. Once again this is a marginal 
reduction and when taking into consideration the acceptable VSC levels it is 
considered to be acceptable. 

121 Denmark Hill 

83. 13 windows and 4 rooms have been assessed at this property for VSC and DD 
respectively. One window would have a VSC reduction that would exceed the BRE 
guidance. The affected windows would see a reduction of 21% which is only 1% 
above the guidance limit and as such it is considered to be a marginal loss. All rooms 
assessed for DD would remain within the BRE guidelines.

123-127 Denmark Hill 

84. All windows and rooms assessed for VSC and DD would remain within the BRE 
guidelines.

Sunlight

30



85. All of the windows facing within 90 degrees of due south have been assessed with 
regards to impact on sunlight. The BRE guide states that nearby windows must be 
assessed to determine whether any of the following would be experienced:

 A reduction in sunlight to less than 25% Annual Probable Sunlight Hours 
(APSH) or;

 A reduction in sunlight to less than 5% Winter Annual Probable Sunlight Hours 
(WAPSH) or;

 both of the above

86. Where any of the above occurs, if the window’s resulting APSH is less than 0.8 times 
its former value, there may be an appreciable loss of sunlight.

87. The results of the sunlight analysis of the neighbouring residential properties 
demonstrate that out of the 88 site-facing windows which are orientated within 90 
degrees of due south, 73 windows would meet the annual and winter sunlight criteria. 
All 15 of the windows which experience losses of sunlight beyond the BRE 
recommendations are located on Building 9 on the William Booth College. Out of the 
15 affected windows, 50% of them falling below the annual criteria will do so only 
marginally and they are located on the two lowest floors of the building. The report has 
stated that the majority of these windows serve shared bedrooms which the BRE 
guide considers as less sensitive to a loss of sunlight, in comparison to habitable 
rooms. When taking these points into consideration it is of the case officer’s opinion 
that the sunlight losses are permissible in this instance.    

88. Overall, it is concluded that the proposed development would not have a detrimental 
impact on the quality of the amenity at the neighbouring resident’s properties. The 
daylight and sunlight report substantiates that in case where the losses exceed the 
BRE guidance, the rooms would still receive an acceptable level of light due to them 
being dual aspect. Given the context of the site and the scale of development being 
proposed, overall the quality of the residential environment would be maintained.

Transport issues 

89. Saved policy 5.1 of the Southwark Plan seeks to ensure that development is located 
near transport nodes or, where they are not, it must be demonstrated that sustainable 
transport options are available to site users and sustainable transport is promoted. In 
addition, saved policy 5.6 of the Southwark Plan requires development to minimise the 
number of car parking spaces provided and included justification for the amount of car 
parking sought taking into account the site's Public Transportation Accessibility Level 
(PTAL), the impact on overspill car parking, and the demand for parking within the 
controlled parking zone.

Public Transportation Accessibility 

90. PTAL provides a useful guide as to the accessibility to an area. PTAL scores range 
from 1 to 6b, where 6b is the highest and 1 is the lowest. The site is located within an 
area with a very good (5-high) public transportation accessibility level. It is directly 
opposite the Denmark Hill train station and close to the busy bus routes on Denmark 
Hill. The additional demand on the public transport network arising from the use will 
have a marginal impact on overall capacity.

Car Parking 

91. Apart from the one disabled car parking space that would be reserved for blue badge 
holders, the proposed development would not provide any additional on site car 

31



parking spaces. Whilst the proposal would result in a loss of 15 of the existing 16 car 
parking spaces, this reduction is deemed satisfactory owing to the sites 
characteristics.

92. The disabled car parking space would be located in close proximity to the disabled 
access which is located on the eastern side of the building. The parking space would 
be accessed via the existing vehicle entrance on Champion Park. The swept path 
analysis that was submitted with the application demonstrates that a large vehicle 
would be able to access the parking bay and leave the site in a forward gear.

93. The applicant will also be required to equip the disabled bay with an active electric 
vehicle charging point.

Cycling parking

94. The applicant has proposed 64 two-tier cycling racks containing 128 spaces and 11 
folding/enclosed spaces, which equates to 139 cycling parking spaces in the lower 
ground floor of the development. In addition to this there would be 16 Sheffield cycling 
racks (32) spaces on the upper ground floor. This amounts to a total of 171 cycle 
parking spaces being provided on site. This cycling parking level is significantly higher 
that the 93 spaces specified on the adopted London Plan and comparable to the 
required 185 spaces in the New London Plan.  

Traffic

95. The applicant’s consultants have estimated that the proposed development would 
generate eight two-way vehicle movement in the morning and three in the evening 
peak hours. The council's Transport Officers interrogation of comparable sites’ travel 
survey within the TRICS travel database suggests that the office segment of this 
development would generate 11 two-way vehicle movements in the morning or 
evening peak hours while the café would produce none in the morning and two two-
way vehicle movements in evening peak hours. 

96. It is estimated that the existing buildings on site would create three two-way vehicle 
movements in the morning and one in the evening peak meaning that this 
development proposal would generate eight and 12 additional two-way vehicle 
movements in the morning and evening peak hours, respectively. 

97. Although the councils net forecast two-way vehicle movements for the evening peak 
hours are higher than the three predicted by the applicant's consultant, both morning 
peak hour projections are comparable. Transports Officers consider that this 
development would not have any noticeable adverse impact on the traffic on the 
adjoining roads. Additionally, it has been demonstrated that the existing public 
transportation infrastructure at this location could accommodate the demand resulting 
from the development. The applicant has proposed travel plan initiatives including the 
provision of a travel pack including public transport information, shower/ 
changing/locking facilities for cyclists plus participation in the government’s tax saving 
cycling scheme which offers employees tax-free bicycles.  

Pedestrian movement

98. The footway adjoining this site on Champion Park is narrow, and pedestrian 
movement is hindered by the mature Plane trees and the existing bus stop. The 
footways are busy in peak hours, with a light-controlled crossing linking the south side 
of Champion Park to Denmark Hill station.

99. The development would enable the high boundary fence to be removed, and a wider 

32



footway to be created. The extent to which the footway can be widened is dependent 
on a detailed survey of the slope of the land and the position of primary roots to the 
trees on street and within the site. Some soft landscaping is proposed which will 
provide a suitable planting medium to ensure the long term good health of the trees, 
and also to provide an attractive frontage to the new building.  Pedestrians will be 
able to move more freely on routes around the planting beds, including better options 
for linking to the existing footpath heading south parallel to Denmark Hill.  Overall this 
will create a much more comfortable, convenient and attractive pedestrian realm.

Servicing

100. Following the construction of the proposed development, servicing and delivery 
access will be carried out via the existing vehicle entrance to the site. An access route 
would be provided directly to the goods lift and bin store which is located on the 
eastern side of the building.

101. The largest vehicle that will typically be required to access the site is a 7.5 tonne box 
van. The amended swept path analysis that has been provided demonstrates that a 
7.5 tonne box van is able to access the site in a forward gear, reverse on-site, and 
then exit onto Champion Park in a forward gear. 

102. The applicant has proposed a refuse collection system which integrates the office 
refuse store with the established process undertake on the broader William Booth 
College site. The refuse bins stored on site will be loaded onto electric vehicles and 
transported along Champion Park to the rear of the William Booth College and taken 
to the existing refuse store. It would then be stored ready for collection by the main 
refuse collection company. As such, no large refuse vehicle will be required to access 
the application site. 

Archaeology  

103. The application site is not within an Archaeological Priority Zone (APZ) but it is 
partially located within the Camberwell Grove conservation area. Appraisal of this 
planning application using the Greater London Historical Environmental Record 
(GLHER) indicates that, in this instance, it can be concluded that the archaeological 
resource would not be compromised by the proposed works. No further archaeological 
assessment, fieldwork or conditions are required in consideration of the archaeological 
impact of this application.   

Sustainable development implications

104. The submitted Energy Strategy demonstrates how the energy hierarchy has been 
applied to the proposed development in order to achieve the carbon reduction targets 
set out in Strategic Policy 13 of the Core Strategy and the London Plan. The Core 
Strategy and the London Plan also state that there is a presumption that all major 
development proposals will seek to reduce carbon dioxide emissions by at least 20% 
through the use of on-site renewable energy generation wherever feasible. In addition 
the London plan expects development to achieve a reduction in carbon dioxide 
emissions of 35% over Part L of the 2013 Building Regulations.

105. The proposed development would incorporate a range of Be Lean, Bean Clean; Be 
Green principles that result in an overall carbon reduction of 18.5% over Part L of the 
2013 Building Regulations which would not be compliant with the London Plan. As 
part of policy 5.2 of the London Plan, where it is demonstrated that the specific targets 
for carbon dioxide emissions reduction cannot be fully achieved on-site the shortfall in 
emissions should be offset, through a financial contributions. The Energy Strategy has 
provided an estimated calculation for an offset payment of £40,320; this figure can be 

33



secured through the s106 agreement.  

BREEAM

106. The new building will be required to meet BREEAM ‘Excellent’ and the Sustainability 
and Energy Statement submitted with the application indicates that this category is 
achievable for the proposed new building. Attaining BREEAM ‘Excellent’ for the overall 
development will be a condition requirement of any consent issued.

Other matters 

Trees

107. The tree stock on site generally forms part of linear groups along the northern and 
southern boundaries. Those which are located within the northern (Champion Park) 
boundary are considered to be of high amenity value. These trees also provide a 
natural screening and serve to soften the appearance of the existing buildings. The 
trees towards the rear of the site also provide a level of amenity but in comparison to 
those on the northern boundary are slightly less visually prominent on the site.  

108. The application site has 25 categorised trees. Out of the 25 trees on site, nine 
category B and three category C trees have been identified for removal in order to 
facilitate this development. The majority of the trees that would be removed are 
located to the rear of the site. The applicant has proposed that the loss can be 
mitigated through the planting of semi-mature stock during the landscaping phase. 
However, the councils Urban Forester has identified that there would be a net loss of 
283cm diameters (stem girth). In the event that full replacement cannot be achieved 
on site, the applicant would be required to enter into an s106 agreement to pay 
financial contributions to compensate for this loss.

109. The applicant’s tree specialist has also identified 1 Category A and 7 category B trees 
that would be at risk of damage as a result of disturbance to their Root Protection Area 
(RPA). The 1 category A tree which has a designated Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 
is a Cedar tree located on the south eastern corner of the site. In order to facilitate the 
development the applicant has proposed the construction of a new retaining wall to 
the north and south of the tree. Following a detailed root investigation by the 
applicant’s tree specialist, the line of the northern retaining wall has been modified to 
clear the existing significant roots. This retaining wall has been extended from the 
original proposed line by an additional 6m. Both the applicant’s trees specialist and the 
councils Urban Forester are satisfied that that this amendment in conjunction with 
standard precautionary measure and arboriculture supervision, would ensure that the 
tree would not be harmed.  

110. The other significant trees around the boundaries of the site are the 7 large Plane 
trees within the Champion Park footway. In order to ensure that these existing trees 
are successfully retained, detailed Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree 
Protection Plan would need to submitted an approved by the council. This can be 
secured by means of planning conditions attached to the decision notice.  

34



Air quality and noise

111. The Councils Environmental Protection Team have recommended a series of 
conditions aimed at protecting amenity for adjacent occupiers in order to minimise 
disturbance from noise and odours. The relevant conditions will be imposed on any 
consent issued and will need to be satisfied prior to any development taking place.

Flood risk

112. The application site in located within the Flood Zone 1 which is defined as having a 
low probability of river and sea flooding. However, the applicant has submitted a Flood 
Risk Assessment which investigated the possibility of groundwater flooding and 
flooding from other sources at the site. The report concluded that there would be a low 
risk of groundwater flooding across the site. Whilst the site is located within a critical 
drainage area, the report found that once again there is a very low risk of flooding as a 
result of surface water. The Environmental Agency was consulted on the application 
and has not raised any objections to the reports findings. 

Planning obligations (S.106 undertaking or agreement) 

113. Saved Policy 2.5 of the Southwark Plan and Policy 8.2 of the London Plan advise that 
planning obligations can be secured to overcome the negative impacts of a generally 
acceptable proposal. Saved Policy 2.5 of the Southwark Plan is reinforced by the 
recently adopted Section 106 Planning Obligations 2015 SPD, which sets out in detail 
the type of development that qualifies for planning obligations. Strategic Policy 14 
‘Implementation and delivery’ of the Core Strategy states that planning obligations will 
be sought to reduce or mitigate the impact of developments. The NPPF which echoes 
the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 122 which requires obligations be: 

 necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
 directly related to the development; and
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

114. The following planning obligations are in the process of being agreed to at the time of 
completing this report. 

 Transport for London is currently working on providing an estimated figure for 

35



contributions necessary to mitigate the impacts of this development on capacity at 
the Denmark Hill Station. 

 An estimated £40,320 carbon offset payment.

 A minimum estimation of £26,007 compensation for tree loss on the site, in the 
event that trees cannot be replaced on site. 

Community infrastructure levy (CIL)

115. Section 143 of the Localism Act states that any financial contribution received as 
community infrastructure levy (CIL) is a material "local financial consideration" in 
planning decisions. The requirement for payment of the Mayoral or Southwark CIL is 
therefore a material consideration. However, the weight attached is determined by the 
decision maker.

116. The Mayoral CIL is required to contribute towards strategic transport investments in 
London as a whole, primarily Crossrail, while Southwark’s CIL will provide for 
infrastructure to support growth. In this instance an estimated Mayoral CIL payment of 
£234,176.63 and a Southwark CIL payment £25,144.39 would be required. The exact 
figures would be agreed to in an s106 agreement, and it is likely that the Salvation 
Army could claim CIL relief if the building is accepted to fulfil their charitable 
objectives. 

Conclusion on planning issues 

117. The Salvation Army has found that the existing offices no longer best meet their 
needs, and bringing the headquarters offices to the existing William Booth College site 
will not only make better use of their existing land holdings but will also create 
efficiencies and synergies.  The offices would be outside the town centre boundary, 
but the NPPF recognises that locational policies should be applied flexibly where the 
development is in response to the specific needs of a sect. The site is well-located for 
public transport, and the scale and nature of the development has not given rise to 
any significant impacts on amenity or local services.

118. The building has been designed in a way that aims to incorporate key elements of the 
broader William Booth College complex, using high quality natural materials to ensure 
that the building would compliment the heritage assets. Although taller than its 
immediate context, the building would be seen in a wider townscape which includes 
the substantial buildings on the Kings College hospital site. The removal of the 
boundary fencing gives the opportunity to significantly improve the pedestrian 
environment on a key route south from Denmark Hill station. The removal of a number 
of trees on site can be justified, and amendments were made to the scheme to protect 
a Class A tree; new tree planting, and measures to protect established street trees will 
be secured by condition

119. The benefits of the development, in terms of efficient use of land, improved public 
realm and quality of design are considered to outweigh any harm to amenity, and 
therefore it is recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to 
completion of a s106 agreement to secure compensation for added pressure on the 
Denmark Hill Station, loss of trees on site and the carbon reduction offset. In the event 
that s106 is not signed, by 19 June 2019 then a decision to refuse the application 
would be taken by the council.  

120. In the event that an agreement has not been completed by 19 June 2019, the 
Committee is asked to authorise the Director of Planning to refuse permission, if 
appropriate, for the following reasons:

36



“In the absence of a signed Section 106 Agreement, there is no mechanism in place to 
avoid or mitigate the impact of the proposed development on public realm, transport 
network or employment and the proposal would therefore be contrary to Saved Policy 
2.5 'Planning Obligations' of the Southwark Plan and Policy 14 - 'Implementation and 
delivery' of the Southwark Core Strategy, the Southwark Supplementary Planning 
Document 'Section 106 Planning Obligations' 2015, and Policy 8.2 Planning 
obligations of the London Plan.”

Consultations
 
121. Details of consultation and any re-consultation undertaken in respect of this 

application are set out in Appendix 1.

Statement of community involvement

122. A Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) has been submitted with the application 
which sets out consultation on the proposal which was undertaken by the developer 
before the planning application was submitted. A public exhibition was held at William 
Booth College on 17 and 19 July 2018, which 3,200 local residents and businesses 
were invited to attend. Over the two days, 61 people attended the public exhibition. In 
addition, the Camberwell Society attended and also a representative of the Twentieth 
Century Society.

123. In addition, all interested parties were given the opportunity to give their feedback 
regarding the proposals via a number of different channels. As well as the feedback 
forms available at the two public exhibitions, the freephone information line, project 
website and email address have been made available since the original publicity flyer 
was posted to the 3,200 addresses surrounding the site. Therefore, all interested 
parties have been able to engage in the consultation period open for two months prior 
to the submission of the planning application.

124. Feedback received included support for the concept of redeveloping the site and 
making it feel more accessible to the community by removing the fence and having a 
café. Concerns raised include the height and massing of the proposal, loss of parking, 
increase in pedestrian movement, loss of daylight and sunlight, design and a loss of 
community space.

Consultation replies

125. Details of consultation responses received are set out in Appendix 2.

Summary of consultation responses

Environmental Agency

126. No objection.

Historic England

127. No objection.

London Underground

128. No objection.

Metropolitan Police Service

37



129. The hotel and associated uses will help to activate this area. There are several 
internal design points that should be incorporated to reduce crime and a condition 
should be imposed that will require the development to attain Secured by Design 
certification.
Response - Officers agree that a 'Secured by Design' condition should be imposed 
and this will require the applicant to liaise with the police to incorporate the various 
design interventions to reduce crime

Natural England

130. No objection.

Thames Water

131. No objection.

Transport for London

132.  Clarification is sought whether the cycle parking is in accordance with the 
London Cycle Design Standards (LCDS) and as to the provision of staff 
lockers, showers and changing facilities. All these should be secured by 
condition along with a car and cycle Parking Management Plan. 

 The provision of (only) blue badge parking is welcomed, however the space 
should be provided with Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP) in accord 
with draft London Plan standards

 A Construction Logistics and Management Plan in accordance with TfL 
guidance. This should be secured by condition. 

 A Travel Plan should be appropriately secured.
 Delivery and servicing is proposed to take place on site which is welcomed by 

TfL, this should be secured by condition.
 Section 106 agreements to be confirmed.
 In terms of trip generation, TfL dispute the reasoning behind discounting staff 

that work less than 17.5hrs per week and this should be adjusted accordingly.
 Any permanent works that may affect the bus stop adjacent to the site should 

be agreed with TfL prior to occupation and if related to construction then 
agreed to prior to works including demolition and site preparation commencing 
as part of the CL/MP. 

Response
Section 106 agreements are being negotiated at present. Request for an Electric 
Vehicle Charging Point (EVCP) for blue badge parking bay will be conditioned. 
Construction Logistics and management plan, Travel plan, delivery and servicing plan, 
to be requested through a condition. The bus stop has not been proposed to move.

133. Following neighbour consultation, 8 responses have been received all of which 
expressed reasons for refusal for the proposed development. The main points of 
objection have been summarised and addressed below.

Objection

134. The scale, massing and design of the proposed building are out of character.
Response- The proposed development incorporated a number of key elements from 
the design and appearance of the existing William Booth College. The height would be 
slightly higher than the majority of the buildings on the campus, particularly those 
along Champion Hill. Whilst final details of the proposed materials would need to 
assessed via a condition, the scheme has shown that the materials would be in 
keeping with those established on the existing college buildings.  

38



Objection

135. The development would detract away from the adjacent historic building and 
conservation area.
Response- the proposed development has been designed in a way that aims to 
incorporate key elements of the broader WBC complex, which includes the Grade II 
listing. The design has incorporated materials that are in keeping with those that are 
established and it would be built to a scale that takes into account the surrounding 
context.

Objection

136. The development would disrupt the views and cause a loss of outlook for residents.
Response- The nearest residential properties to the proposed development are 
located at Allport House. This flanking elevation has one small single window on each 
of the floors. There two buildings would be separated by 15m. This would be less than 
the 21 metres requirements set out in the SPD. However, these windows do not serve 
as the main source of outlook for these flat, as the main outlook is to the east and 
west. Therefore, the main point of outlook would be preserved.

Objection

137. It would cause a loss of daylight and sunlight for local residents.
Response-.The daylight and sunlight report that has been submitted with this 
application has shown that the large majority of the neighbouring residential properties 
would experience little or no loss of daylight and sunlight. However, the worst affected 
windows, which would be at Allport House, are secondary windows serving rooms that 
are dual aspect. In addition to this results of the daylight distribution test show that 
these rooms would be compliant with the BRE guidelines, showing that the rooms 
overall would continue to the well-lit.

Objection

138. Change of use from residential to commercial is inappropriate. In addition, there have 
been a few comments which question the need for Salvation Army to have another 
office building. 
Response- Class C2 use remains to be the lawful use for the site. The C2 use is not 
protected under development plan policies and therefore the loss of C2 is considered 
acceptable. The office would replace the existing headquarters in Elephant and Castle 
to the application site and not the provision of another office building under the 
ownership of the Salvation Army.

Objection

139. The construction process would cause the inconvenience of noise and dust 
disturbance.
Response- As detailed above, officers consider that the use of planning 
conditions/obligations regarding servicing, management and hours of operation would 
be able to appropriately mitigate any potential adverse impacts.

Objection

140. There would be an increase in traffic congestion and added pressure on the parking 
provision in the area.
Response- There would be no parking space provided on the site and the office 
employees would not be liable to apply for parking permits in the area. Employees and 

39



visitors to the site would need to use the existing public transportation or cycle into 
work. 

Objection

141. There would be added pressure on the capacity of the train station. 
Response- Transport For London is currently working on providing an estimated 
figure for contributions necessary to mitigate the impacts of this development on 
capacity at the Denmark Hill Station. This would be secured in the s106 agreement.

Objection

142. Where will the families who currently live there go?
Response- In 2017 the Salvation Army were given temporary planning permission, for 
a period of up to five years, the use buildings 10 and 11 as short term housing for 
asylum seekers awaiting permanent homes. The flats were no longer needed for the 
salvation Army member families, The Salvation Army have confirmed that all 
refugee/asylum seekers that were housed in buildings 10 and 11, in the lead up to 
submission of this application, have been re-housed within the Borough. The Salvation 
Army has assured the council that all appropriate measures had been put in place in 
the lead up to and post the relocation process.

Human rights implications

143. This planning application engages certain human rights under the Human Rights Act 
2008 (the HRA). The HRA prohibits unlawful interference by public bodies with 
conventions rights. The term ’engage’ simply means that human rights may be 
affected or relevant.

144. This application has the legitimate aim of providing office building on site. The rights 
potentially engaged by this application, including the right to a fair trial and the right to 
respect for private and family life are not considered to be unlawfully interfered with by 
this proposal.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Site history file: TP/2166-A

Application file: 18/AP/3144

Southwark Local Development 
Framework and Development 
Plan Documents

Place and Wellbeing 
Department
160 Tooley Street
London
SE1 2QH

Planning enquiries telephone: 
020 7525 5403
Planning enquiries email:
planning.enquiries@southwark.gov.uk
Case officer telephone:
0207 525 0952
Council website:
www.southwark.gov.uk 

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Consultation undertaken
Appendix 2 Consultation responses received
Appendix 3 Recommendation 

40



AUDIT TRAIL 

Lead Officer Simon Bevan, Director of Planning
Report Author Christopher Kirby, Graduate Planning Officer
Version Final
Dated 8 March 2019
Key Decision No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINIT MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director of Finance & Governance No No
Strategic Director, Environment and Social 
Regeneration 

No No

Strategic Director of Housing and 
Modernisation

No No

Director of Regeneration No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 8 March 2019

41



APPENDIX 1

Consultation undertaken

Site notice date:  15/10/2018 

Press notice date:  18/10/2018

Case officer site visit date: n/a

Neighbour consultation letters sent:  15/10/2018 

Internal services consulted: 

Ecology Officer
Economic Development Team
Environmental Protection Team Formal Consultation  [Noise / Air Quality / Land 
Contamination / Ventilation]
Flood and Drainage Team
HIGHWAY LICENSING
Highway Development Management
Housing Regeneration Initiatives
Waste Management

Statutory and non-statutory organisations consulted:

EDF Energy
Environment Agency
Greater London Authority
Historic England
London Borough of Lambeth, GIS & Street Naming Officer
London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority
London Underground Limited
Metropolitan Police Service (Designing out Crime)
Natural England - London Region & South East Region
Network Rail (Planning)
Thames Water - Development Planning
Transport for London (referable & non-referable app notifications and pre-apps)

Neighbour and local groups consulted:

Flat 96 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 6 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ
Flat 97 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 7 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ
Flat 95 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 8 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 93 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 9 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 94 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 7 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 10 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 5 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 11 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 6 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 1 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 13 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 98 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Fetal Medicine Research Institute 16-20 Windsor Walk SE5 8BB
Flat 99 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 12 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 92 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 10 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 85 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 11 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 86 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 4 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 84 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 213 William Booth Training College SE5 8BQ
Flat 82 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 722 William Booth Training College SE5 8BQ
Flat 83 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH 14b William Booth Training College Champion Park SE5 8BQ
Flat 90 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH House 12a William Booth Training College SE5 8BQ
Flat 91 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH House 12b William Booth Training College SE5 8BQ

42



Flat 89 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 2 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 87 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 3 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 88 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 1 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 25 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Douglas Bennett House Maudsley Hospital SE5 8AZ
Flat 26 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 29 Champion Grove London SE5 8BN
Flat 24 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 35 Champion Grove London SE5 8BN
Flat 22 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 27 Champion Grove London SE5 8BN
Flat 23 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 98 Grove Lane London SE5 8BJ
Flat 3 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 49 Champion Grove London SE5 8BN
Flat 30 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 51 Champion Grove London SE5 8BN
Flat 29 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 37 Champion Grove London SE5 8BN
Flat 27 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Maudsley Hospital Denmark Hill SE5 8AZ
Flat 28 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 102 Grove Lane London SE5 8BJ
Flat 21 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Aubrey Lewis House Maudsley Hospital SE5 8AZ
Flat 15 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 14a William Booth Memorial Training College SE5 8BQ
Flat 16 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 201 William Booth Memorial Training College SE5 8BQ
Flat 14 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 11 Windsor Walk London SE5 8BB
Flat 12 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Ronald Mcdonald House 6 Windsor Walk SE5 8BB
Flat 13 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 115 Denmark Hill London SE5 8AQ
Flat 2 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 111 Denmark Hill London SE5 8AQ
Flat 20 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 113 Denmark Hill London SE5 8AQ
Flat 19 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 11 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 17 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 12 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 18 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 10 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 119 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 5 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 120 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 1 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 118 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 7 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 116 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 8 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 117 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 4 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 59 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 2 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 60 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 3 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 58 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 13 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN
Flat 56 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH 41 Champion Grove London SE5 8BN
Flat 57 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Administration Block William Booth Memorial Training College SE5 

8BQ
Flat 115 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH 121 Denmark Hill London SE5 8EN
Flat 108 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Residential Block 10 William Booth Memorial Training College SE5 

8BQ
Flat 109 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Residential Block 11 William Booth Memorial Training College SE5 

8BQ
Flat 107 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 9 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 105 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 10 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 106 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 8 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 113 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 6 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 114 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 7 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 112 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Humpty Dumpty Nursery William Booth Training College SE5 8BQ
Flat 110 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Assembly Hall Windsor Walk SE5 8BB
Flat 111 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 11 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 75 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 12 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 76 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 5 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 74 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Ground Floor Block 9 William Booth Training College SE5 8BQ
Flat 72 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH 125 Denmark Hill London SE5 8EJ
Flat 73 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 6 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 80 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 9 123 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 81 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 3 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 79 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 4 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 77 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 2 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 78 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 1 127 Denmark Hill SE5 8EJ
Flat 71 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH 1 Pirie Close London SE5 8TF
Flat 64 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 7 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Flat 65 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 8 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Flat 63 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 6 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Flat 61 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 4 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Flat 62 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 5 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Flat 69 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 224 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG
Flat 70 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 225 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG
Flat 68 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 223 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG
Flat 66 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 9 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Flat 67 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH Flat 222 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG
Flat 31 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 3 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Block 11 Flat 9 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 19 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

First Floor And Second Floor Flat 100 Grove Lane 
SE5 8BJ

Flat 2 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

Block 11 Flat 16 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 18 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

Block 11 Flat 14 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 16 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

Block 11 Flat 15 William Booth Training College SE5 Flat 17 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

43



8BQ
Residential Block 3 Flat William Booth Training 
College SE5 8BQ

Flat 23 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

Residential Block 4 Flat William Booth Training 
College SE5 8BQ

Flat 24 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

Residential Block 2 Flat William Booth Training 
College SE5 8BQ

Flat 22 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

First Floor And Second Floor Flat 45 Champion 
Grove SE5 8BN

Flat 20 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE

47b Champion Grove London SE5 8BN Flat 21 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Block 11 Flat 13 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 240 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Block 10 Flat 5 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 241 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Block 10 Flat 6 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 239 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Block 10 Flat 4 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 237 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Block 10 Flat 2 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 238 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Block 10 Flat 3 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 103 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH

Block 11 Flat 11 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 104 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH

Block 11 Flat 12 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 102 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH

Block 11 Flat 10 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 100 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH

Block 10 Flat 7 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 101 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH

Block 10 Flat 8 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 236 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Offices Adjacent Denmark Hill Railway Station SE5 
8BB

Flat 229 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Residential Block 9 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 230 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Residential Block 7 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 228 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Residential Block 8 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 226 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Residential Block 6 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 227 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Ground Floor Flat 45 Champion Grove SE5 8BN Flat 234 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG
47a Champion Grove London SE5 8BN Flat 235 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG
Residential Block 7 Flat William Booth Training 
College SE5 8BQ

Flat 233 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Residential Block 5 Flat William Booth Training 
College SE5 8BQ

Flat 231 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Residential Block 6 Flat William Booth Training 
College SE5 8BQ

Flat 232 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TG

Residential Block 4 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 12 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD

Residential Block 5 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 13 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD

Residential Block 3 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 11 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD

Residential Block 1 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 1 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD

Residential Block 2 William Booth Training College 
SE5 8BQ

Flat 10 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD

Flat 45 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 17 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 46 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 18 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 44 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 16 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 42 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 14 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 43 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 15 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 5 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 2 39 Champion Grove SE5 8BN
Flat 50 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 102a Grove Lane London SE5 8BJ
Flat 49 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 4 Pirie Close London SE5 8TF
Flat 47 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 2 Pirie Close London SE5 8TF
Flat 48 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 3 Pirie Close London SE5 8TF
Flat 41 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat B 53 Champion Grove SE5 8BN
Flat 35 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 1 39 Champion Grove SE5 8BN
Flat 36 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat B 43 Champion Grove SE5 8BN
Flat 34 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat A 43 Champion Grove SE5 8BN
Flat 32 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat A 53 Champion Grove SE5 8BN
Flat 33 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 1 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Flat 4 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 10 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Flat 40 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 9 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 39 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 7 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD

44



Flat 37 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 8 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 38 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 14 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
16 Windsor Walk London SE5 8BB Flat 15 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
The Phoenix Windsor Walk SE5 8BB Flat 13 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
4 Windsor Walk London SE5 8BB Flat 11 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Research Centre 1-3 Windsor Walk SE5 8BB Flat 12 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE
Admin Block Third Floor Flat 1 William Booth Training 
College SE5 8BQ

Flat 6 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD

Block 10 Flat 1 William Booth Training College SE5 
8BQ

Flat 21 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD

5 Windsor Walk London SE5 8BB Flat 22 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
100a Grove Lane London SE5 8BJ Flat 20 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Denmark Hill Railway Station Windsor Walk SE5 8BB Flat 19 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 54 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 2 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 55 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 4 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 53 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 5 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 51 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 3 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 52 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 23 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 9 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ Flat 24 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD
Flat 8 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 117 Marden Square London SE16 2JB

Re-consultation:  n/a

45



APPENDIX 2

Consultation responses received
Internal services

Economic Development Team 

Statutory and non-statutory organisations

Environment Agency 
Historic England 
London Underground Limited 
Metropolitan Police Service (Designing out Crime) 
Natural England - London Region & South East Region 
Thames Water - Development Planning 

Neighbours and local groups

Flat 10 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN 
Flat 13 121 Denmark Hill SE5 8EN 
Flat 16 Hannen House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TE 
Flat 22 Allport House Champion Park Estate SE5 8TD 
Flat 26 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TQ 
Flat 90 Ruskin Park House SE5 8TH 
117 Marden Square London SE16 2JB 
35 Champion Grove London SE5 8BN 

  

46



APPENDIX 3

RECOMMENDATION

This document shows the case officer's recommended decision for the application referred to below.
This document is not a decision notice for this application.

Applicant The Salvation Army Reg. Number 18/AP/3144
Application Type Full Planning Application 
Recommendation Grant subject to Legal Agreement Case 

Number
TP/2166-A

Draft of Decision Notice

Planning Permission was GRANTED for the following development:
Demolition of two existing buildings (Use Class C2) and erection of a part four, five and six storey multi-purpose 
building(maximum height of 23m), including basement, for offices (Use Class B1a) (6,747.3sqm GEA) and cafe 
(Use Class A3) (230.9sqm GEA), together with landscaping, boundary treatment, access and other associated 
works.

At: BUILDINGS 10  AND 11, WILLIAM BOOTH MEMORIAL TRAINING COLLEGE, CHAMPION PARK, LONDON, 
SE5 8BQ

In accordance with application received on 27/09/2018    

and Applicant's Drawing Nos. EXISTING
EX-02-001 REV 03 - EXISTING SITE PLAN
EX-02-010 REV 01 - EXISTING SITE PLAN
EX-03-009 REV 00 - EXISTING LOWER GROUND FLOORS
EX-03-010 REV 00 - EXISTING GROUND FLOORS
EX-03-011 REV 00 - EXISTING FIRST FLOOR
EX-03-012 REV 00 - EXISTING SECOND FLOOR
EX-03-013 REV 00 - EXISTING THIRD FLOOR
EX-03-014 REV 00 - EXISTING LOFT PLAN
EX-03-015 REV 00 - EXISTING ROOF PLAN
EX-05-001 REV 00 - EXISTING BUILDING 10 ELEVATIONS
EX-05-002 REV 00 - EXISTING BUILDING 11 ELEVATIONS
EX-05-010 REV 00 - EXISTING LONG ELEVATION (CHAMPION PARK)

PROPOSED
A-02-010 REV 03 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN
A-02-001 REV 04 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN
A-04-001 REV 02 - PROPOSED SECTION A-A
A-03-009 REV 08 - PROPOSED LOWER GROUND FLOOR
A-03-010 REV 05 - PROPOSED UPPER GROUND FLOOR
A-03-011 REV 10 - PROPOSED FIRST (TYPICAL FLOOR)
A-03-012 REV 05 - PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR
A-03-013 REV 05 - PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR
A-03-014 REV 06 - PROPOSED FOURTH FLOOR
A-03-015 REV 05 - PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
A-04-002 REV 06 - PROPOSED SECTION B-B
A-05-001 REV 03 - PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION
A-05-002 REV 03 - PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION
A-05-003 REV 03 - PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION
A-05-004 REV 03 - PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION
A-05-010 REV 00 - PROPOSED LONG ELEVATION (CHAMPION PARK)
JNY9672-02G SERVICE & CAR VEHICLE SPA
TOWN684(08)1002 R01 - LANDSCAPE TREE PLAN
TOWN684(08)1001 REV R01 - SURFACE FINISHES

DOCUMENTS
AIR QUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (SEPTEMBER 208)
AMENDED ECOLOGICAL APPRAISAL - EDP4700_R001C_201118
ARBORICULTURAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (FEBURARY 2019)
DRAINAGE STRATEGY (SEPTEMBER 2018)

47



DAYLIGHT,SUNLIGHT AND OVERSHADOWING ASSESSMENT (SEPTEMBER 2018) 
DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT (SEPTEMBER 2018)
ENERGY AND SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 
ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE SURVEY (JUNE 2018)
HERITAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT (SEPTEMBER 2018)
LANDSCAPE STRATEGY (SEPTEMBER 2018)
PLANNING STATEMENT (SEPTEMBER 2018)
STRUCTURAL STATEMENT (AUGUST 2018)
STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
OUTLINE CONSTRUCTION LOGISTIC PLAN (SEPTEMBER 2018)
TRAVEL PLAN (SEPTEMBER 2018)
TRANSPORT STATEMENT (SEPTEMBER 2018)
FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT (SEPTEMBER 2018)
VENTILATION STATEMENT 

Subject to the following twenty-one conditions: 

Time limit for implementing this permission and the approved plans  

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the end of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason
As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.

 
2 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the following 

approved plans:

PROPOSED
A-02-010 REV 03 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN
A-02-001 REV 04 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN
A-04-001 REV 02 - PROPOSED SECTION A-A
A-03-009 REV 08 - PROPOSED LOWER GROUND FLOOR
A-03-010 REV 05 - PROPOSED UPPER GROUND FLOOR
A-03-011 REV 10 - PROPOSED FIRST (TYPICAL FLOOR)
A-03-012 REV 05 - PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR
A-03-013 REV 05 - PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR
A-03-014 REV 06 - PROPOSED FOURTH FLOOR
A-03-015 REV 05 - PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
A-04-002 REV 06 - PROPOSED SECTION B-B
A-05-001 REV 03 - PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION
A-05-002 REV 03 - PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION
A-05-003 REV 03 - PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION
A-05-004 REV 03 - PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION
A-05-010 REV 00 - PROPOSED LONG ELEVATION (CHAMPION PARK)
JNY9672-02G SERVICE & CAR VEHICLE SPA
TOWN684(08)1002 R01 - LANDSCAPE TREE PLAN
TOWN684(08)1001 REV R01 - SURFACE FINISHES

Reason:
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

  
Pre-commencement condition(s) - the details required to be submitted for approval by the condition(s) listed below 
must be submitted to and approved by the council before any work in connection with implementing this permission is 
commenced. 

3 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction Method Statement has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period.  The Statement shall provide for:

the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
loading and unloading of plant and materials;
storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, 
where appropriate;
wheel washing facilities;

48



measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;
a scheme for recycling / disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works

Reason:
To ensure that occupiers of neighbouring premises do not suffer a loss of amenity by reason of pollution and 
nuisance, in accordance with strategic policy 13 'High environmental standards' of the Core Strategy (2011) saved 
policy 3.2 'Protection of amenity' of the Southwark Plan (2007), and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

 
4 Prior to works commencing, including any demolition, an Arboricultural Method Statement including an 

Arboricultural Survey shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

a) A pre-commencement meeting shall be arranged, the details of which shall be notified to the Local Planning 
Authority for agreement in writing prior to the meeting and prior to works commencing on site, including any 
demolition, changes to ground levels, pruning or tree removal. 

b) A detailed Arboricultural Method Statement showing the means by which all retained trees on or directly 
adjacent to the site are to be protected from damage by demolition works, excavation, vehicles, stored or stacked 
building supplies, waste or other materials, and building plant, scaffolding or other equipment, shall then be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The method statements shall include details 
of facilitative pruning specifications and a supervision schedule overseen by an accredited arboricultural 
consultant.

c) Cross sections shall be provided to show surface and other changes to levels, special engineering or 
construction details and any proposed activity within root protection areas required in order to facilitate demolition, 
construction and excavation.  

The existing trees on or adjoining the site which are to be retained shall be protected and both the site and trees 
managed in accordance with the recommendations contained in the method statement. Following the pre-
commencement meeting all tree protection measures shall be installed, carried out and retained throughout the 
period of the works, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  In any case, all works 
must adhere to BS5837: (2012) Trees in relation to demolition, design and construction and BS3998: (2010) Tree 
work - recommendations.

If within the expiration of 5 years from the date of the occupation of the building for its permitted use any retained 
tree is removed, uprooted is destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall 
be of such size and species, and shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

Reason
To avoid damage to the existing trees which represent an important visual amenity in the area, in accordance with 
The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and policies of The Core Strategy 2011: SP11 Open spaces and 
wildlife; SP12 Design and conservation; SP13 High environmental standards, and Saved Policies of The 
Southwark Plan 2007: Policy 3.2 Protection of amenity; Policy 3.12 Quality in Design; Policy 3.13 Urban Design 
and Policy 3.28 Biodiversity.

  
5 Details of bird and bat nesting boxes / bricks shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority prior to the commencement of the use hereby granted permission.  

No less than 4 Sparrow Terraces + 2 Redstart boxes, 6 internal bat tubes shall be provided and the details shall 
include the exact location, specification and design of the habitats.  The boxes / bricks shall be installed with the 
development prior to the first occupation of the building to which they form part or the first use of the space in 
which they are contained. 

The nesting boxes / bricks shall be installed strictly in accordance with the details so approved, shall be 
maintained as such thereafter.

Discharge of this condition will be granted on receiving the details of the nest/roost features and mapped locations 
and Southwark Council agreeing the submitted plans, and once the nest/roost features are installed in full in 
accordance to the agreed plans. A post completion assessment will be required to confirm the nest/roost features 
have been installed to the agreed specification.

Reason:  
To ensure the development provides the maximum possible provision towards creation of habitats and valuable 
areas for biodiversity in accordance with policies: 5.10 and 7.19 of the London Plan 2016, Policy 3.28 of the 
Southwark Plan and Strategic Policy 11 of the Southwark Core Strategy.

49



  
Commencement of works above grade - the details required to be submitted for approval by the condition(s) listed 
below must be submitted to and approved by the council before any work above grade is commenced. The term 'above 
grade' here means any works above ground level. 

6 Prior to above grade works commencing, elevations and sections at a minimum scale of 1/10 of typical facade 
bays (i.e 1no. typical main facade bay, atrium/ entrance bay and corner block bay) of all elevations shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; the development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with any such approval given. 

Reason: 
In order to ensure that these samples will make an acceptable contextual response in terms of materials to be 
used, and achieve a quality of design and detailing in accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework 
2019, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.12 Quality 
in Design and 3.13 Urban Design of The Southwark Plan 2007.

 
7 Before any above grade work hereby authorised begins, detailed drawings of a hard and soft landscaping scheme 

showing the treatment of all parts of the site not covered by buildings (including cross sections, surfacing materials 
of any parking, access, or pathways layouts, materials and edge details), shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The landscaping shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with 
any such approval given and shall be retained for the duration of the use. The landscape layout shall be designed 
to maximise the footpath width on Champion Park (consistent with the protection of the retained trees), and to 
facilitate convenient pedestrian movement southwards.

The planting, seeding and/or turfing shall be carried out in the first planting season following completion of building 
works and any trees or shrubs that is found to be dead, dying, severely damaged or diseased within five years of 
the completion of the building works OR five years of the carrying out of the landscaping scheme (whichever is 
later), shall be replaced in the next planting season by specimens of the same size and species in the first suitable 
planting season. Planting shall comply to BS: 4428 Code of practice for general landscaping operations, BS: 5837 
(2012) Trees in relation to demolition, design and construction and BS 7370-4:1993 Grounds maintenance 
Recommendations for maintenance of soft landscape (other than amenity turf).

Reason
So that the Council may be satisfied with the details of the landscaping scheme in accordance with The National 
Planning Policy Framework 2019 policies of The Core Strategy 2011: SP11 Open spaces and wildlife; SP12 
Design and conservation; SP13 High environmental standards, and Saved Policies of The Southwark Plan 2007: 
Policy 3.2 Protection of amenity; Policy 3.12 Quality in Design; Policy 3.13 Urban Design, Policy 3.28 Biodiversity 
and Policy 5.5 Walking and cycling..

  
8 Before any above grade work hereby authorised begins, details of security measures shall be submitted and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and any such security measures shall be implemented prior to 
occupation in accordance with the approved details which shall seek to achieve the 'Secured by Design' 
accreditation award from the Metropolitan Police. 

Reason
In pursuance of the Local Planning Authority's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 
consider crime and disorder implications in exercising its planning functions and to improve community safety and 
crime prevention in accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Strategic Policy 12 - Design 
and conservation of The Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policy 3.14 Designing out crime of the Southwark Plan 
2007. 

  
9 Prior to above grade works commencing, material samples/sample-panels/sample-boards (as appropriate) of all 

external facing materials to be used in the carrying out of this permission shall be presented on site and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority; the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with any such approval given. 

Reason: 
In order to ensure that these samples will make an acceptable contextual response in terms of materials to be 
used, and achieve a quality of design and detailing in accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework 
2019, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.12 Quality 
in Design and 3.13 Urban Design of The Southwark Plan 2007.

  
10 Before any fit out works to the commercial premises hereby authorised begins, an independently verified 

BREEAM report (detailing performance in each category, overall score, BREEAM rating and a BREEAM certificate 
of building performance) to achieve a minimum 'very good or excellent' rating shall be submitted to and approved 

50



in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with any such approval given;
Before the first occupation of the building hereby permitted, a certified Post Construction Review (or other 
verification process agreed with the local planning authority) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, confirming that the agreed standards at (a) have been met.

Reason
To ensure the proposal complies with The National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Strategic Policy 13 - High 
Environmental Standards of The Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies 3.3 Sustainability and 3.4 Energy 
Efficiency of the Southwark Plan 2007.

  
11 Before any above grade work hereby authorised begins details (1:50 scale drawings) of the facilities to be 

provided for the secure and covered storage of cycles shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter the cycle parking facilities provided shall be retained and the space used for no 
other purpose and the development shall not be carried out otherwise in accordance with any such approval 
given.

Reason
In order to ensure that satisfactory safe and secure cycle parking facilities are provided and retained in order to 
encourage the use of cycling as an alternative means of transport to the development and to reduce reliance on 
the use of the private car in accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Strategic Policy 2 - 
Sustainable Transport of The Core Strategy and Saved Policy 5.3 Walking and Cycling of the Southwark Plan 
2007.

  
Pre-occupation condition(s) - the details required to be submitted for approval by the condition(s) listed below must be 
submitted to and approved by the council before the building(s) hereby permitted are occupied or the use hereby 
permitted is commenced. 

12 Before the use hereby permitted begins details of the arrangements for the storing of commercial refuse shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the facilities approved shall be provided 
and made available for use by the occupiers of the dwellings and the facilities shall thereafter be retained and 
shall not be used or the space used for any other purpose.

Reason
To ensure that the refuse will be appropriately stored within the site thereby protecting the amenity of the site and 
the area in general from litter, odour and potential vermin/pest nuisance in accordance with The National Planning 
Policy Framework 2019, Strategic Policy 13 High Environmental Standards of the Core Strategy 2011 and Saved 
Policies 3.2 Protection of Amenity and Policy 3.7 Waste Reduction of The Southwark Plan 2007 

 
13 a)    Before the first occupation of the building hereby permitted commences the applicant shall submit in writing 

and obtain the written approval of the Local Planning Authority to a Travel Plan setting out the proposed measures 
to be taken to encourage the use of modes of transport other than the car by all users of the building, including 
staff and visitors.

b)    At the start of the second year of operation of the approved Travel Plan a detailed survey showing the 
methods of transport used by all those users of the building to and from the site and how this compares with the 
proposed measures and any additional measures to be taken to encourage the use of public transport, walking 
and cycling to the site  shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the 
development shall not be carried out otherwise in accordance with any such approval given.

Reason
In order that the use of non-car based travel is encouraged in accordance with The National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019, Strategic Policy 2 Sustainable Transport of The Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies 5.2 
Transport Impacts, 5.3 Walking and Cycling and 5.6 Car Parking of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

  
14 Before the first occupation of the building hereby permitted a Service Management Plan detailing how all elements 

of the site are to be serviced has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approval given and shall remain for as long as the 
development is occupied.

Reason
To ensure compliance with The National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Strategic Policy 2 Sustainable 
Transport of The Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policy 5.2 Transport Impacts of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

51



  
Compliance condition(s) - the following condition(s) impose restrictions and/or other requirements that must be 
complied with at all times once the permission has been implemented. 

15 An electric vehicle charging point shall be provided to service the disabled parking space provided within the 
development.
Reason
To encourage the uptake of electric and hybrid vehicles and minimise the effect of the development on local air 
quality within the designated Air Quality Management Area in line with Policy 7.14 of the London Plan and to 
comply with parking standards in Policy 6.13 of the London Plan

 
16 The use hereby permitted for A3 purposes shall not be carried on outside of the hours 07:00 - 22:00 on Monday to 

Friday or 08:00 - 22:00 on weekend and bank holidays.

Reason:
To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residential properties in accordance with The  National Planning 
Policy Framework 2019,  Strategic Policy 13 High environmental standards of The Core Strategy 2011 and 
Saved Policy 3.2 Protection of Amenity of The Southwark Plan 2007.

  
17 Any deliveries or collections to the commercial units shall only be between the following hours: 07:00 - 22:00 on 

Monday to Fridays, and 09:00 - 20:00 on Weekends and Bank Holidays

Reason
To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residential properties in accordance with The  National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019,  Strategic Policy 13 High environmental standards of The Core Strategy 2011 and Saved 
Policy 3.2 Protection of Amenity of The Southwark Plan 2007

  
18 No developer, owner or occupier of any part of the development hereby permitted, with the exception of disabled 

persons, shall seek, or will be allowed, to obtain a parking permit within the controlled parking zone in Southwark 
in which the application site is situated. 

Reason
To ensure compliance with Strategic Policy 2 - Sustainable Transport of the Core Strategy 2011 and saved policy 
5.2 Transport Impacts of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

  
19 No roof plant, equipment or other structures, other than as shown on the plans hereby approved or approved 

pursuant to a condition of this permission, shall be placed on the roof or be permitted to project above the roofline 
of any part of the building[s] as shown on elevational drawings or shall be permitted to extend outside of the roof 
plant enclosure[s] of any building[s] hereby permitted.

Reason
In order to ensure that no additional plant is placed on the roof of the building in the interest of the appearance and 
design of the building and the visual amenity of the area in accordance with The National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies 
3.2 Protection of Amenity and 3.13 Urban Design of the Southwark Plan 2007.

  
20 Notwithstanding the provisions of Parts 24 and 25 The Town & Country Planning [General Permitted 

Development] Order 1995 [as amended or re-enacted] no external telecommunications equipment or structures 
shall be placed on the roof or any other part of a building hereby permitted.

Reason
In order to ensure that no telecommunications plant or equipment which might be detrimental to the design and 
appearance of the building and visual amenity of the area is installed on the roof of the building in accordance with 
The National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The Core 
Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies 3.2 Protection of Amenity and 3.13 Urban Design of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

  
Other condition(s) - the following condition(s) are to be complied with and discharged in accordance with the individual 
requirements specified in the condition(s). 

21 The Rated sound level from any plant, together with any associated ducting shall not exceed the Background 
sound level (LA90 15min) at the nearest noise sensitive premises.  Furthermore, the Specific plant sound level 
shall be 10dB(A) or more below the background sound level in this location.  For the purposes of this condition the 
Background, Rating and Specific Sound levels shall be calculated fully in accordance with the methodology of 
BS4142:2014. Prior to the plant being commissioned a validation test shall be carried out following completion of 

52



the development. The results shall be submitted to the LPA for approval in writing. The plant and equipment shall 
be installed and constructed in accordance with the approval given and shall be permanently maintained 
thereafter.

Reason
To ensure that occupiers of neighbouring premises do not suffer a loss of amenity by reason of noise nuisance or 
the local environment from noise creep due to plant and machinery in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2019, .Strategic Policy 13 High Environmental Standards of the Core Strategy 2011 and Saved 
Policy 3.2 Protection of Amenity of the Southwark Plan (2007

 
 Statement of positive and proactive action in dealing with the application 
The Council has published its development plan and core strategy on its website together with advice about how 
applications are considered and the information that needs to be submitted to ensure timely consideration of an 
application. Applicants are advised that planning law requires applications to be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

The Council provides a pre-application advice service that is available to all applicants in order to assist applicants in 
formulating proposals that are in accordance with the development plan and core strategy and submissions that are in 
accordance with the application requirements.

The pre-application service was used for this application and the advice followed. The application was determined in a 
timely manner.

   

53



This page is intentionally blank.



OPEN MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018-19
COMMITTEE: PLANNING COMMITTEE
NOTE: Original held in Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to Virginia Wynn-Jones/Everton Roberts, Constitutional 

Team, Tel: 020 7525 7055

OPEN
COPIES COPIES

MEMBERS

Councillor Martin Seaton (Chair)
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor James McAsh
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Adele Morris
Councillor Jason Ochere
Councillor Cleo Soanes
Councillor Kath Whittam

Electronic Copies (No paper) 

Councillor James Coldwell (Reserve)
Councillor Tom Flynn (Reserve)
Councillor Renata Hamvas  (Reserve)
Councillor Darren Merrill (Reserve)
Councillor Jane Salmon (Reserve)

MEMBER OF PARLIAMENT (Paper and Electronic)

Helen Hayes MP, House of Commons, London, SW1A 
0AA

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1

PLACE AND WELLBEING DEPARTMENT

Kevin Fenton

PLANNING TEAM

Simon Bevan 
Jacquelyne Green

COMMUNITY SAFETY AND ENFORCEMENT TEAM

Sarah Newman

COMMUNICATIONS TEAM

Louise Neilan

LEGAL TEAM 

Jonathan Gorst

CONSTITUTIONAL TEAM

Virginia Wynn-Jones/Everton Roberts

TOTAL PRINT RUN

List Updated: 29 October 2018

1

1
4

1

1

1

9

27


	Agenda
	 Procedure Note
	5 Minutes
	6 Development Management
	Agenda

	6.1 Buildings 10 And 11, William Booth Memorial Training College, Champion Park, London, SE5 8BQ
	Item 1 - Report
	item 1 - recommendation

	 
	Distribution Open 2018_19


